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COMPANY’S VISION

Asia, especially China, is rising towards a
historical economic and cultural renaissance. The
new era provides immense business potential to
companies which can bring good lifestyle and
values to the region.
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For the sole purpose of this Annual Report, the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC”) excludes Hong Kong and
Macau Special Administrative Regions and Taiwan.
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nE Rk BCEEEHR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
E£OE A E

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S
MISSION STATEMENT

Focusing its efforts on brand building and distributions,
WKH's mission is to promote and capitalise on the high
growth in luxury lifestyle products in the Asian region.
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Your Board of Directors announces that a consolidated loss of
HK$141.2 million was recorded for the year ended December
31, 2009. Turnover of the Group had decreased by 5.2% to
HK$1,240.7 million.

The global financial tsunami took a big toll on our business
in 2009. In such hostile environment, the Group was forced to
sacrifice profit margins in return for a healthier cash position.
It was a painful exercise but enabled us to go through such
a tough period to become stronger and more focused on our
main business.

Your management took a comprehensive review of all our
business units and made the bold and prudent decision to
terminate all loss-making businesses; these included the fashion
distribution and retailing units of “John Richmond”, “Marina
Yachting” and “Sweet Years”; the distribution of “Ferretti”
motor yachts in the PRC, the distribution of “Alfa Romeo” and
“Fiat” motor cars in Hong Kong. Though the Group suffered
high one-time loss by cutting away these businesses, significant
savings are ensured for 2010 and beyond. Regrettably, as part
of the process, we had to downsize our headcount from 659
at the beginning of the year to 561 by end of 2009.
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Drastic cost cuttings were also implemented across the board
in all remaining business divisions and supporting functions.
We have at the same time introduced an extensive business
redesign and automation program throughout the entire
organization. We shall achieve further cost savings and increase
of operational efficiency as a result.

With the gradual recovery of the Asian economies, especially
in the markets where we operate, we are seeing significant
recovery in our businesses towards the end of last year. This
growth momentum continues into 2010 and we are very
confident in turning around our operational results.

We foresee that our “Ferrari” and "Maserati” car business
will grow strongly, with introduction of new models, margins
improvement as a result of a weakening Euro, increase of
after-sales service income and efficiency, and increase in the
used car sales.

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE Zs3{HE1H 1
Executive Chairman & CEO
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
OB A E

Encouraging improvements are also envisaged for the other
business divisions of electrical appliance, motor yacht,
“V-one” and “Playboy” fashion. The setting up of a 50/50
joint venture with the Binda Group of Italy in February
2010 for the distribution of “D&G", “Moschino” and “Breil
Milano” branded watches and accessories will enable our
Group to further strengthen its positioning and become one
of the market leaders in China’s growing fashion watches and
jewellery market.

The Group is in sound financial standing, with a healthy cash
position of HK$152 million (2008: HK$164 million) at the end
of 2009, with a current ratio of 1.2 and a total asset over
total liabilities ratio of 1.4.

The Group's financial position was further strengthened by the
placing and subscription of new shares in October 2009, this
generated HK$40.6 million of net cash and reflected confidence
placed by the market in the Group's future.

As we become more efficient and more focused, the Group
remains on course to become a leading company to promote
and distribute luxury and lifestyle products in Asia. Aligned with
the strong growth and huge potential of the China market, we
envisage continuous business expansion and growing return
on our investment for years to come.

We are very blessed that we have very experienced, passionate
and competent people working in harmony for the Group.
On behalf of your board, | would like to express our utmost
gratitude and sincere appreciation to our shareholders, bankers
and very loyal staff for their most valuable trust, support and
contribution.

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman & CEO

Hong Kong, April 9, 2010
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

I

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BT BT BT A%t BETn
Results ES
Turnover E L] 1,240,716 1,308,229 1,153,201 786,580 697,454
(Loss)/profit from operations KE(B18)/ &7 (120,474)  (23,699) 4,135 27,730 76,322
Finance costs HBER (9,236)  (8,298)  (14,355)  (11,381)  (6,685)
Other non-operating income HiE2 £ WA - - 76,021 28,624 -
Other non-operating expenses Hitrg £ (20,986)  (18,958)  (15,468)  (25,658) -
Share of results of associates JEREE N R EE (95) (18)  (1,169)  (7,777)  (20,739)
(Loss)/profit hefore tax BB (ER) /BRI (150,791)  (50,973) 49,164 11,538 48,898
Income tax expense FERAE (399)  (8,079)  (6,256)  (1,141)  (11,502)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(ER)/ BF (151,190)  (59,052) 42,908 10,397 37,39
Attributable to: &1
Equity holders of the Company AREERBEA (141,225)  (68,869) 35,677 7,114 35,461
Minority interests DERFEER (9,965) 9,817 7,231 3,283 1,935
(151,190)  (59,052) 42,908 10,397  37,3%
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Total assets BEE 777,877 864,775 800,723 721,686 615,606
Total liabilities BakE (558,544) (538,874) (397,869) (402,707) (311,085)
Net assets BEFE 219,333 325,901 402,854 318,979 304,521
Equity attributable to equity holders ARAERHAA
of the Company iR 208,698 305,093 380,378 303,976 300,977
Minority interests LY R R ER 10,635 20,808 22,476 15,003 3,544
Total equity L o 219,333 325901 402,854 318,979 304,521
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

B E -

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operations

As a result of the financial tsunami, which was rampant
throughout the material time of 2009, our sales performance
was unsatisfactory. A two-fold restructuring was launched in
the second quarter of 2009. The first part was to promptly
discontinue all loss-making operations even at the cost of
various one-off losses arising from termination arrangements;
the second part was to freeze all further expansion of our
existing businesses in order to preserve liquid cash level. This
rationalization has proved to help in the generation of more
cash flow and the reduction of operating expenses and has laid
a healthy foundation for our recovery in the coming year.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, Group turnover
decreased 5.2% to HK$1,240.7 million from HK$1,308.2 million
last year. Our gross profit margin decreased from 19.0% last
year to 13.1% this year, resulting in a contraction of margin
by HK$86.0 million to HK$162.3 million (2008: HK$248.3
million). The weak economic situation led to a general price
cut of many of our consumer products. In order to boost sales
and clear all inventories, those discontinued brands of the
fashion segment, together with “Alfa Romeo” and “Fiat” of
the car segment inevitably resulted in a gross loss.

The Group's operating costs were considered to be high and
unsatisfactory. Distribution and administrative costs increased
by 1.4% to HK$290.0 million (2008: HK$286.0 million),
representing 23.4% (2008: 21.9%) of the turnover. The high
costs were mainly due to the unfavorable exchange rate of
Euro and the high distribution and administrative costs of
discontinued businesses. The non-performing “Alfa Romeo” car,
“Fiat” car and the motor yacht businesses were at all material
times suffering from relatively heavy payroll and overheads. At
the same time, those discontinued brands under the fashion
segment recorded low sales and high fixed costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BOHE A A E A M B IR UL A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Results of Operations (continued)

We have made due impairment of HK$6.0 million (2008: HK$9.0
million) on our 10% investment in Digital Outdoor Television
(Hong Kong) Limited as well as HK$3.2 million (2008: nil)
impairment on goodwill respectively, basing on professional
valuation. A restructuring cost of HK$10.1 million (2008: nil)
was related to termination expenses in respect of payroll and
overhead for all discontinued business units.

The board regrets to deliver a loss attributable to shareholders
of HK$141.2 million (2008: HK$68.9 million), carrying a
further loss of HK$72.3 million as compared with last year.
As the global financial situation deteriorated, our business
encountered a severe downturn, particularly during the first
three quarters of 2009. We would conclude that 2009 was a
very bad year for us, being affected by a cluster of negative
elements. With the various appropriate corrective actions
initiated in the second quarter, we are now beginning our
strong recovery process.

Starting from 2010, we have implemented a comprehensive
budget control management model by which, inter alia, all
business units and cost centers are closely monitored with
timely reports including variance analysis. Accordingly, any
unreasonable or unapproved expenses are rigorously challenged
or disallowed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

N

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Results of Operations (continued)

Our financial performance for the first quarter of 2010 was
really encouraging. All major business units managed to
achieve their pre-set budgets. Management will continue to
monitor business across all segments on a monthly basis to
ensure major business operations are on the right track with
satisfactory financial performance.

Financial Condition and Capital Structure

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity capital
base, cash flow generated from operations and bank borrowings.
As usual, bank and other liabilities were being met upon their
maturities in the normal course of business.

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2009 were HK$152.0
million (2008: HK$164.0 million). The cash used in operating
activities was HK$9.5 million (2008: HK$188.5 million). The
cash used in operating activities was mainly for purchase of
inventories in the car business.

The Group had total borrowings at December 31, 2009 amounting
to HK$179.5 million (2008: HK$190.6 million). The Group's
long term gearing ratio stood at 16.5% (2008: 12.4%), based
on long term liabilities (excluding deferred tax) of HK$34.5
million (2008: HK$37.7 million) and shareholders’ equity of
HK$208.7 million (2008: HK$305.1 million). The current ratio
was 1.2 (2008: 1.4), based on current assets of HK$628.5
million (2008: HK$711.4 million) and current liabilities of
HK$524.1 million (2008: HK$501.2 million).

The Group had trading facilities at December 31, 2009 amounting
to HK$326.4 million (2008: HK$298.6 million) of which HK$226.2
million (2008: HK$214.5 million) was utilized.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BOHE A A E A M B IR UL A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group's purchases were mainly conducted in Euro and US
Dollar while the sales are mainly conducted in HK Dollar and
RMB. It is the Group’s management practice to hedge foreign
currency transactions with the objective to stabilize the cost
via the pegging of the exchange rates with bankers. Due to
the sustained strong Euro throughout 2009, we unavoidably
suffered from a higher exchange rate and purchase cost,
particularly for our car division. At December 31, 2009, there
were no outstanding foreign exchange contracts purchased
with banks (2008: HK$4.8 million).

Pledge of Assets

Certain of the Group's properties, a motor yacht, inventories,
cash deposits and all assets of a subsidiary were pledged
at year ended 2009 in an aggregate amount of HK$258.9
million (2008: HK$216.8 million) to secure loans and facilities
granted.

Capital Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities

The Group had capital commitments of HK$0.8 million at
December 31, 2009 (2008: HK$14.8 million). At December 31,
2009, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2008:
HK$4.0 million in respect of a bank guarantee issued to the
purchaser of the disposed associate.)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BOHE W B E SR A M B IR B A

BUSINESS REVIEW

Car
The business consists mainly of the import, distribution and
after-sales service of Italian “Ferrari”, “Maserati”, "Alfa

Romeo” and “Fiat” cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and
Macau. In the PRC, we operate “Ferrari” and “Maserati” car
dealerships in Dalian and Nanjing.

Compared to 2008, there was a slight decrease of turnover of
2.7% to HK$976.4 million as a result of the economic downturn.
Profit margins suffered from increased costs of cars and an
untimely switch of "Ferrari” purchase payment from US Dollar
to Euro from the beginning of year; a strong Euro during the
year caused higher purchase cost of cars.

Sales of “Ferrari” remained stable with uninterrupted deliveries
of F430 Berlinettas, Spiders, Scuderias and limited series Scuderia
Spider 16Ms. The first California GTs had been delivered and
the year closed with an outstanding order portfolio quoting
a delivery time of approximately two years.

In September 2009, “Ferrari” launched the new 8 cylinder 458
Italia sports car. First deliveries are due to commence in Hong
Kong in mid-2010 but this new model has already obtained
exceptionally positive reviews and prestigious awards all
around the world. By the end of 2009, the Group had secured
an encouraging number of orders for the 458 Italia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Car (continued)
Awareness of the “Maserati”
Hong Kong due to the launch of the revised Quattroporte Sport
GT S. Demand for “Maserati”’s GranTurismo and GranTurismo
S remained relatively high. Deliveries of the first examples
of the GranTurismo S Automatic began in June 2009. Despite
this, “Maserati” was exposed to the reduction in demand for
all cars throughout 2009 and recorded a drop in the Group's
sales performance compared with 2008.

brand achieved another boost in

Our dealership business in Dalian and Nanjing has developed
well and both turnover and financial performance continued
to improve in these two regions.

The PDI (Pre-Delivery Inspection) work being carried out by the
Group on behalf of Ferrari Maserati Cars International Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Limited generated good additional income.

The "Alfa Romeo” and "Fiat” businesses were badly hit in 2009
due to the economic downturn. In view of market conditions,
a rationalisation program took effect in the fourth quarter of
2009 with the closing of the “Alfa Romeo” and "Fiat” sales
operations.

In order to improve the overall performance and profitability of
our car division, an operation efficiency improvement and cost
reduction program was introduced in the last quarter of 2009.
Satisfactory results were achieved since its introduction.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BOHE W B E SR A M B IR B A

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Electrical Appliances

The business consists of the marketing and distribution of
a wide range of consumer and commercial air-conditioning
and home appliance products from major brands, namely
"Mitsubishi Heavy Industries” of Japan (“MHI") and “GREE"
of the PRC, audio-visual products of our own “Rogers” and
“Bodysonic” brands, “Marantz” and “Denon” and “Alpine”
car electronics.

The product ranges are well-placed in the market to suit the
needs of different market segments. Facing extreme challenges
during the economic downturn, turnover of the electrical appliance
business was decreased by 9.6% as compared to 2008.

In Hong Kong, most of the air conditioning
projects in the private sector came to a
halt in the first half of 2009. Meanwhile,
however, projects from the public sectors
recorded a growth due to the increase of
the public expenditures. Whilst demand
for car audio and audio visual equipment
in Hong Kong was affected seriously due
to the sluggish market in the first half
of 2009, the market sentiment started
to recover during the last quarter of
the year.

Rogers

Despite the economic downturn pressures, our subsidiaries in
Singapore and Malaysia still recorded a slight increase in profit.
The successes were contributed mainly to the successful sales
and marketing activities and our extensive dealer network.

Fashion Apparels and Accessories

The business consists of the distribution, sub-licensing and
retailing of several fashion brands including the Italian “John
Richmond”, “Marina Yachting” and “Sweet Years” brands in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group is also licensed to manufacture
and sell American “Playboy” lingerie and ladies’ swim wears
in the PRC and Hong Kong and the “Playboy” ladies’ apparels
in the PRC and Taiwan. The group also engages in the business
of design, trading and sale of men’s apparels in the PRC under
the self-owned brand of “V-one”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

R A R

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Fashion Apparels and Accessories (continued)

Due to the economic recession and unsatisfactory performance,
a substantial restructuring was undertaken from the middle of
2009. We terminated the distribution activities and the retail
outlets of “John Richmond”, “Marina Yachting” and "Sweet
Years” in Hong Kong and the PRC. As for the “Playboy” licensing,
we decided to refocus our activities only in the PRC and reached
a termination agreement with “Playboy” for the licenses of
ladies’ apparels in Taiwan, lingerie and ladies’ swim wear in
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Malaysia and Singapore.

Extensive operation efficiency improvement and cost optimization
measures were implemented in the business unit of “V-one”
men’s wear. For the past couple of months, financial performance
has seen marked improvement as a result.

In addition to the fashion business, in July 2008, our Group
was appointed by the Italian Binda Group as its sole and
exclusive distributor of fashion watches and jewellery under
the Italian brands of “D&G", “Moschino” and “Breil Milano”
in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

In 2009, satisfactory results were achieved in our watches
and jewellery wholesales activities while retail performances
were below our expectation. In the last quarter of 2009, we
closed our own retail stores in Hong Kong and Shanghai and
focused on the profit-making wholesales activities. Along
with such strategic change, we introduced a new program
that would improve our overall business performance, supply
chain collaboration and customer satisfaction. A cost effective
advertising and promotion program, with a funding of over
HK$17.0 million supported by Binda Group, will be launched
in the highly lucrative China market in 2010.
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OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Other Business

In addition to the above key businesses, the Group also engages
in the distribution of motor yachts in Hong Kong and the PRC.
This included the Italian brands “Pershing” and "Ferretti” and
Taiwanese brand “Horizon".

At the end of 2009, the Group's distribution agreement with
“Ferretti” expired and the management decided not to continue
this line of business due to severe market difficulties in China
and in order to eliminate the extensive cost structure of the
yacht network in China.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of 2009, the total number of employees of the
Group, excluding associates, was 561 (2008: 659), representing
a 14.9% decrease in headcount. This was mainly due to the
restructuring program which took place in the fashion and
electrical appliances divisions.

The management is committed to staff motivation, training
and development to ensure that our employees remain stable
as well as competitive and dynamic in the marketplace.
Several leadership training seminars for our managerial staff
were conducted during the year to strengthen their skills
and teamwork amidst the difficult market situation. Together
with the continuous organizational improvements led by our
committed management team, we are confident that our
business and our employees will grow together for the benefit
of the Group in the years to come.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Establishment of Joint Venture with Italian
Fashion Accessories Distributor

On January 25, 2010, Trendy Move International Limited (the
“Trendy Move”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a share subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with Binda S.p.A. (“Binda”), an Italian fashion
accessories distributor, pursuant to which Binda agreed to
subscribe for new shares in Binda WKH (Greater China) Limited
("Binda WKH") (previously known as Grow Bright Limited).
The Subscription Agreement was completed on February 1,
2010 and Binda WKH is owned as to 50% by Trendy Move
and as to 50% by Binda. For more details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated January 25, 2010.

Share Subdivision and Change in Board Lot Size
Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting held on February 12,
2010, each of the existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company was subdivided into
5 new ordinary shares (the “Subdivided Shares”) of HK$0.02
each (the “Share Subdivision”). With the Share Subdivision
became effective on February 17, 2010, the Subdivided Shares
were traded in board lots of 12,500 Subdivided Shares. For
more details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated February 12, 2010.

PROSPECTS

As the global financial situation continues to recover, we are
confident that the Group's business performance in 2010 will
also recover substantially over 2009.

The Group's order portfolio for “Ferrari” continues to grow
healthily with a lead-time of between two and four years for
the renewed range. Overall interest and demand is strong
and the launch of the new 8 cylinder 458 Italia sports car in
September 2009 added further impetus. “Maserati's” profile
continues to increase in 2010. A significant development in our
after-sales business and used car sales will help to improve

the profitability of our car business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BOHE W B E SR A M B IR B A

PROSPECTS (continued)

For our electrical appliances business, we will work closely
with our major suppliers such as “MHI" and “Alpine”
to improve our market shares and market positioning through
effective marketing and sales programs. We will continue to
explore development opportunities for our own “Rogers”
brand in the PRC.

in order

Capitalising on the continuous growth of the China economy
and consumption, the Group formed a joint venture with Binda
Group of Italy in February 2010 for the distribution of watches
and jewellery under the Italian brands of “D&G", "Moschino”
and "Breil Milano” in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.
With the strong support from Binda Group, we are confident
that we can expand our watch and jewellery businesses rapidly
in the Greater China area. After the restructuring in the middle
of 2009, our own “V-one” branded men's wear business
outperformed its budget. We are confident that our fashion
business is ready to expand with good growth momentum.

In order to maintain our competitiveness in the market, we
have introduced an extensive business process redesign and
automation program throughout the entire organization. We
are currently entering into the testing stage of the ADP Car
Dealer Management System in our car division which is due to
go live in the middle of 2010. Simultaneously, an optimization
program of our BAAN Enterprise Resources Planning System
is taking place in order to improve our internal and supply
chain efficiency.

Resources saved by the cost optimization programmes will
be utilised in the front end marketing and sales activities in
order to improve revenues and profit. Smaller profit centres
are being created within different business segments. This
will ensure the objectives of employees and the Group are
seamlessly aligned.

Whilst the Group will continue to grow into an important lifestyle

products distribution company, our business in 2010 will be
moving forward with a prudent but optimistic approach.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Richard Man Fai LEE, BSB, MBA, DBA, aged 53, the Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is the
son of Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the former Director and Honorary
Chairman of the Company and Ms. Kam Har YUE, a Non-executive
Director and the elder brother of Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, an
Executive Director of the Company. He is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise,
Inc., an associated company of the Group.

Dr. Lee is responsible for formulating the Group's overall
strategic planning and business development. Dr. Lee has 30
years' experience in marketing consumer products and has
been with the Group for 26 years. He has a bachelor’s degree
and a master's degree in business administration from the
University of Minnesota.

In September 2006, Dr. Lee was bestowed the title of “Commander
of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity”. In March 2009,
Dr. Lee was awarded the 11th World Outstanding Chinese Award
and the Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from
International American University.

Jeff Man Bun LEE, BSc, MSc, University of Michigan, Msc,
Stanford University, aged 51, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since January 2002. He is the son of Mr.
Wing Sum LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE and the younger brother
of Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE. He is responsible for strategic
planning and development of new projects of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a System Software Specialist at
the Research and Development Department of Apple Computer
International Limited for 5 years. He had also been actively
involved in the Group’s business from 1991 to 1997 prior to
his current appointment.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Tik Tung WONG, FCCA, CPA (Practising), aged 53, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since June 2004 and
is the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, authorised
representative and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is also the Chief Financial
Officer and Corporate Secretary of China Premium Lifestyle
Enterprise, Inc., an associated company of the Group. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is an INED of
each of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited and China
Energy Development Holdings Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Boon Seng TAN, M.A., Cambridge University, aged 54, has been
an INED of the Company since April 1999 and is a member of
the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tan is the Chairman and
Managing Director of Lee Hing Development Limited and a
non-executive director of Genting Hong Kong Limited (Formerly
known as “Star Cruises Limited"”), both companies are listed on
the Main Board of the stock exchange of Hong Kong. He is also
the executive Director of IGB Corporation Berhad, a company
listed on the stock exchange of Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. He
also holds directorships in many other companies.

Ying Kwan CHEUNG, FCCA, CPA, aged 50, has been an INED
of the Company since November 2005 and is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is the finance manager of
Carling Technology Limited and has over 23 years of experience
in financial management for a number of corporations and
listed companies. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Peter Pi Tak YIN, BA, MBA, PhD, aged 56, was appointed as an
INED and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company
in September 2009. He is the Customer Service Vice President
of Federal Express Corporation now based in Hong Kong.
He has been with Federal Express for over 25 years with
ample experience in operational management, marketing and
communications aspects and stationed in Singapore, Japan
and Memphis, Tennessee, U.S.A.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Kam Har YUE, aged 77, was involved in the policy making
of the Group from 1962 to December 1989. She has been
redesignated as a Non-executive Director of the Company
since then to scrutinise the performance of management of
the Company. She has over 35 years' experience in trading
and distribution of consumer products. Ms. Yue is the spouse
of Mr. Wing Sum LEE, who is the former Director and Honorary
Chairman of the Company and the mother of Dr. Richard Man
Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, both of whom are Executive
Directors of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Herbert ADAMCZYK, aged 69, is the Managing Director
of Technorient Limited, a subsidiary of our Group, and the
Director and Chief Operating Officer of China Premium Lifestyle
Enterprise, Inc., an associated company of the Group. He has
45 years' experience in the automotive trade in Hong Kong.
He has a motor engineering background and has been with the
Technorient Group for 27 years. He is an Executive Committee
member of the Motor Traders Association of Hong Kong.

John NEWMAN, aged 42, is Deputy Managing Director of
Technorient Limited. He has 22 years’ experience with blue
chip sports and luxury car manufacturers and importers, and
was a director of a successful motor racing team in Europe.
He holds a Diploma in Business and Finance, is a qualified
pilot and a member of the Institute of the Motor Industry in
the UK. Experienced in sales, marketing, distribution, dealer
development, media communications and customer relationship
management, he has been with the Group since 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Powell Kwok Chuen CHEUNG, MBA, aged 46, is the Deputy
Director of the Group. He is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He has 21 years’ sales and marketing
experience in both industrial and consumer products. He has
been with the Group for 18 years.

Terence Po Sheung WONG, aged 58, is the General Manager
of Human Resources and Administration Department, Warehouse
Operations Department and I.T. Department of the Group. He
has 39 years’ experience in property management, distribution
management, after-sales services and logistics management.
He had been with the Group for 6 years from 1991 to 1997
prior to his current appointment.

Kwang Liang CHIA, BSBA (Hons), aged 49, is a Director and
General Manager of the subsidiary companies of the Group in
Singapore. He also oversees the operation of the companies of
the Group in Malaysia. He has over 23 years’ corporate and
financial management experience and has been with the Group
for 16 years. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in KPMG
Peat Marwick as an auditor for 5 years and a multinational
company for 3 years. He is also an officer of the Singapore
Arm Forces.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT
EEGHREE

The Directors present to shareholders this annual report and
audited financial statements for the financial year ended
December 31, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the import, marketing
and distribution of cars, electrical appliances and fashion
apparels and accessories. The activities and other particulars
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Details of segmental information are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

GROUP RESULTS

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 54 and
further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the
financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2008: nil) for the year ended December 31, 2009. No interim
dividend was paid during the year (2008: nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 7.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
Information about the share options of the Company and
details of movements in the share options of the Company
during the year are set out in the “Share Option Information”
section in this Annual Report and in note 47 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 59 to 60 of this
Annual Report and in note 38 to the financial statements
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in note
18 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of HK$803,000 (2008: HK$395,000).

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's borrowings are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements. No interest was capitalised by the
Group during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 45.4% of the
Group's purchases during the year, 23.1% being attributable
to the largest supplier. The percentage of turnover attributable
to the Group's five largest customers is less than 30% during
the year.
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As far as the Directors are aware, no Director of the Company,
their associates or any shareholder (who to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Reference is made to the announcement made by the Company
dated July 3, 2009 and the circular issued by the Company
dated July 20, 2009 in relation to the placing of a maximum
of 100,000,000 new shares under a specific mandate and
the subscription of a maximum of 50,000,000 new shares by
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE, the Executive Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, who is a connected person
of the Company. On October 30, 2009, 100,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.10 each were issued at a placing price of HK$0.28
each to six independent third parties and 50,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at a subscription price of
HK$0.28 each to Dr. Lee. The net proceed of HK$40.6 million
was used as general working capital.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance between the Company or
one of its subsidiary companies, and a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31,
2009.

There was no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2009.
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DIRECTORS =
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year AFEANLRBERFHMARRARIEFT 2T AN
and up to the date of this report are: K
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE EEE T
(Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (BITERFITEAAE)
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE FXMW L
Mr. Tik Tung WONG ERR
Mr. Waison Chit Sing HU| Note? ST RERK ot A HERTR
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Kam Har YUE REBERL
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. Boon Seng TAN PR A&
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE Mete2 R S s
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG oR & 3 ST A&
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN MNete3 FHR (R S A s
Notes: B 5

1. Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI resigned as an Executive Director of 1.  FFHEKEHEH200957 A1 BB ERQ AT
the Company with effect from July 1, 2009. 5=

2. Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE resigned as an INED of the Company 2. FER%E4H2009F6A3RRBEEANQRIE L
with effect from June 3, 2009. ERITES -

3. Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN was appointed as an INED of the Company 3. FEELAEH2009FIA2ABEZTAAAF
with effect from September 2, 2009. BYFITES o

In accordance with Bye-law No. 99 of the Bye-laws of the {KIEARARGF 2 AGIMMAEINE - kB A N
Company, Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG will retire from office by FHEERRBFARG LhFEER HEREEX
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being ~ BiEEF -

eligible, shall offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law No. 102(B) of the Bye-laws of the  &K#EA QA 2 AT AAIZE102(B) & - 720094
Company, Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN who was appointed as INED 9A2HEZEABIUIERNITES 2 FHEELE
effective from September 2, 2009, will hold office until the WEEERRBFRG LEH  HREEEXE
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, shall 3 &E1F o

offer himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's Bye-laws. The Company has received from
each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the independence assessing factors guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of 3 years commencing from April 1,
2002 and the appointment continues thereafter unless and
until terminated by either party giving to the other 6 months’
notice in writing or pay-in-lieu.

Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of 1 year commencing from January
21,2002 and the appointment continues thereafter unless and
until terminated by either party giving to the other 3 months’
notice in writing or pay-in-lieu.

Save as disclosed, there is no other directors’ service contracts
which is exempted under Rule 13.69 of the Listing Rules or not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES BEEvRSES

At December 31, 2009, the interests and short positions of ~ 720095F12H31H » XA A EEEFREEITH
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the ABRAARINEMBEEE(EERBIFR
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or ~ ERE G HIEXVEL) 2l th - HEAR G RE#EFE
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of ~ FH# B REFHF KB E KRG FE352EEBLAE
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in  fofft : KRB LT RAREFTETESRIHZIE
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;  <FRIZEME AN R KRB R AT 2 # % ROA B IR
or are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities T

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange are as follows:

mf}

el

(a) Beneficial interests and short positions in the shares of  (a) 72009 12A31H - R AR AR D 2 2
the Company at December 31, 2009: miEmRKE

/

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“Share(s)")
EREEB¥IOTEBERRO(TREDEE

Personal Family Corporate Total
Director interests interests interests interests
=} 8 A= Rk R AR ER REAE
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE 52,779,725 - 116,560,284 169,340,009
ENEB L (note 1)
GEEE)
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE 566,280 - 118,295,146 118,861,426
EXWERE (notes 1 & 2)
(FIsEEE1 21E)
Mr. Tik Tung WONG 175,000 - - 175,000
MR A&
Mr. Boon Seng TAN 325,662 - - 325,662
PR SCAE SR A
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN 40 - - 40
FmEE
Ms. Kam Har YUE 6,251,659 - 116,560,284 122,811,943
REBXL (note 1)
GEE )
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Notes:

1. The 116,560,284 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited,
which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. (formerly
known as Cyber Tower Inc.) as trustee of The W S Lee Unit
Trust. 99% of the units of The W S Lee Unit Trust are held
by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE's family
members including Ms. Kam Har YUE, Dr. Richard Man Fai
LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are among the beneficiaries.
The remaining 1% of the units of The W S Lee Unit Trust is
held by Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms.
Kam Har YUE, Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man
Bun LEE. All of Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Mr. Jeff Man Bun
LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE are directors of the Company

2. Out of the 118,295,146 Shares, 1,734,862 Shares are held
by Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE.

3. All interests in the shares are long position. None of the
Directors held any short position in the Shares.

EScEsER(E)

GEX

#2116,560,284 1% f& 7 EEModern Orbit Limited
#7 > Modern Orbit Limited i Cyber Tower
(PTC) Inc. (ATTECyber Tower Inc.){EAThe
W S Lee Unit Trust ZEsEAZEHER © The
W S Lee Unit Trustz99% st —IE & #
BREFTFA EXBARTKRAEEZR
ERE  EHhBEEREELL  FXEE
T REXWRAE - The W S Lee Unit Trust
E #21%# 2 1 Skylink International Asset
Corporationf§ A * ZAAINRBRELIHE
Ay BREER LT FXEFEL R
FXWEERE - TXEEL - FEXWE
k£ REBRITHARARES -

52118,295,146% i 19 & 11,734,862 /% A%
3 fiFisherman Enterprises Inc.35 8 @ &2
AR RBEZESEMA Y - BFEXWE
ERERS o

WDz BEERIGBITE - BEBERE
ER LR PREEMAR

(b) Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying shares ~ (b) 22009412 A31H - AR R Z BRI £

of equity derivatives of the Company at December 31, TAZHEBEROD 2 BmEa RBERSF
2009 are disclosed in the section headed “Share Option HIELRREER | —HATARE -

Information” of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ BEECESFELS(HE)

(continued)

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

() 720094128318 » RAEEEE 2 K%

T EERE AR

(c) Beneficial interests and short positions in shares in
associated corporations at December 31, 2009:

Associated corporations Number of shares or

in which shares or
equity interests are
held or interested

amount of equity
interests held or
interested in

Class and/or
description of shares

Director BEREERA D BERBEEZROHE B% 12 38 Bl
= RAREZR 2 HEEE R ERBE R/ SRR
Ms. Kam Har YUE ~ Rogers Entertainment 34,335 Non-voting deferred shares
REeBEXT International Limited
LRTIREBEBEFER AT EAR BRI
Shinwa Engineering 3,850,000 Non-voting deferred shares
Company, Limited
BEMIEARRA EIRRRRETER
Wo Kee Hong Limited 8,900 Non-voting deferred shares
MEEEBRQA] (note 1) BRERBER
(MH3ESE11R)
Wo Kee Services Limited 1 Non-voting deferred share
Ml B REHR AR (note 2) BIRERIRIER
(PHEE5E218)
Notes: MaE
1. 8,500 shares held by Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the spouse of Ms. 1. BEBREEXLTZEBIKRELLER

Kam Har YUE, are included. H 78,5000 f& 1D ©

ZIRBRHBREEL T 2 REFKHRE
ERA -

2. The 1 share is held by Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the spouse of 2.
Ms. Kam Har YUE.

3. All interests in the above shares are long positions. None 3. RERHZAEEARTRE - &ML
of the Directors held any short positions in the above ZEERN L RHPFEERMAE -
shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ASSETS AND/OR
ARRANGEMENT

At December 31, 2009, save as those disclosed in “Directors’
Interests in Contracts” in this Directors’ Report, none of the
Directors had any other direct or indirect interest in any assets
which have been acquired or disposed of by or leased to any
members of the Group, or were proposed to be acquired or
disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group.

At December 31, 2009, save as those disclosed in “Directors’
Interests in Contracts” in this Directors’ Report, there is no
other contract or arrangement subsisting in which a Director
was materially interested and which was significant in relation
to the business of the Group as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed "Connected
Transaction” of this Directors’ Report, there were no other
contracts of significance in relation to the Group business,
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a
material interest subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended December 31, 2009.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

None of the Directors of the Company (other than INEDs) is
interested in any business apart from the Company’s business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Company's business.

EENEECERR RTH

M2009F12H31H RESEREEMRE 2
[BEEEAHNEZHZIN  WEARNEERE
WESTHESIHETAEEFNKECEE -
FRBNERHEXHEFAEETEKE 2
FHEEFZEAMEMEE N EEER -

M2009F12H31H RESEREEMREZ
[BEEEAENEZFZ IO WEFRESHAE
SEEREREEEFE VHMEOR LTS
ZEHEEAFE -

EEESNLZzRE

BRAEEREE(BER S —HMBEEEIN
KR F SR E ALY B A R AR F K s & 2= 2009
F12A3MBIEFEAERERE - WEERFER
HAREEERAENMESCEAFERIEES
BEAAMBZCHMEEZESH -

ESEBRFRTECES

BRARBZEBI ARBAZEFCBLIFH
TEEHRMBEETMERRAREBTEER
HEEBFRACARFZEBPRAES -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FEBRR

Save as disclosed below and in the section headed “Directors’ PR NXFIHEBEELRIEScESHFE= ] —
Interests in Securities”, at December 31, 2009, so far as is  %F * 72009128318 - L E ST A - B &
known to the Directors, no other person had, or was deemed i A AR FIR% 15 Sk A8 B A% (0 A 8 B il
or taken to have an interest or short position of 5% or more R AXEEHB %I U EZ2ERZSAE - 0
of the interests in the Shares or underlying shares of the ZAREFHFRHE KM E336(EATLM2
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under A

Section 336 of the SFO:

Beneficial interests and short positions in Shares and underlying 72009512 A31H - RAR ARG RIERITE
shares of equity derivatives of the Company at December 31, T EABRNH  EmERIAR ¢

2009:
Number of Approximate %
underlying shares of of the total
equity derivatives issued Shares
Shareholder Number of Shares HERERTETR HERTREABLREZ
B’RER BRHEAR ZBRHBEE BHABES T
Modern Orbit Limited 116,560,284 - 25.89%
(note 1)
(MH3ESE11R)
Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. 116,560,284 - 25.89%
(note 1)
(PFzE2E178)
HSBC International Trustee Limited 116,560,284 - 25.89%
(notes 1 & 2)
(Pf 5581 % 278)
Mr. Wing Sum LEE (note 3) 122,811,943 3,164,000 27.98%
FoKFREE(MFEFE3E)
Ms. Yong YANG (note 4) 118,861,426 3,164,000 27.10%

Bk £ (M5 418)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. The 116,560,284 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited which
is wholly owned by Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. (formerly known as
"Cyber Tower Inc.”) as trustee of The W S Lee Unit Trust. 99% of
the units of The W S Lee Unit Trust are held by a discretionary
trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE's family members including
Ms. Kam Har YUE, Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man
Bun LEE are among the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the
units of The W S Lee Unit Trust is held by Skylink International
Asset Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Dr. Richard Man Fai
LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE. All of Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE,
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE are directors of the
Company. The 116,560,284 Shares held by Modern Orbit Limited
duplicates with each of the 116,560,284 Shares held by Cyber
Tower (PTC) Inc., HSBC International Trustee Limited, Mr. Wing
Sum LEE, and Ms. Yong YANG as set out in this section.

2. HSBCInternational Trustee Limited is the trustee of the discretionary
trust which holds 99% of the units of The W S Lee Unit Trust.

3. Mr. Wing Sum LEE is the spouse of Ms. Kam Har YUE, a non-
executive director of the Company.

4.  Ms. Yong YANG is the spouse of Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, an
executive director of the Company.

5. Allinterests in Shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company are long position. None of the substantial
shareholders hold any short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this Annual Report, based on information that
is publicly available to the Company, the Directors acknowledge
that more than 25% of the issued capital of the Company is
held by the public.

FTERR(E)
i

1. #%116,560,2841% % 15 B3 Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc.
(BT FE Cyber Tower Inc.)AThe W S Lee Unit Trust
ZAEFE AT H 2 E % EModern Orbit Limited °
The W S Lee Unit Trustz99%# & AR — B 2 #
AT E  EREKBREEZREKRE(E
FRERSELLT  FTXBEHLIRFXWE
E)BZEEETZZEmA 2 The W S Lee Unit
TrustE &21%E 25 A Skylink International Asset
Corporation## 48 * ZARIREEE LS
M ARESBLZ LT FBIE L RFXWL
EHR FNBIEL FXWEERREEK
T AKRRNFES o AModern Orbit Limited#
B 2116,560,284/% 1% 15 o Bl 81 58 7% &6 15 FT &
2 Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. * HSBC International
Trustee Limited * R RELERG XKL THE
2116,560,284 R fx(HE L& -

2. HSBC International Trustee Limited@ # &
The W S Lee Unit Trust 99% 1z 2 2 #E:E 2
FEEA o

3. FAREERARFFNTEEREBERLZ
fefg e

4, BAREIRARARTESEFTFXWEEZR
B e

5. MARABMEBRATET A ZBBERNZAH
ERZERTR BEENIERRRARF]
Betn R BCARST A T A Z AR B P 45 B E A%

PN

X
DRERE

RAFEHRE  ARFREKEEARAMNER &
EHRARALNA L2 B BEITIRAE DR
ﬁ ]
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries have not repurchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda although there is no restriction
against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng who will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. There is no change in auditors of the
Company in the preceding three years.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes
in information of directors of the Company subsequent to the
date of the 2009 Interim Report are set out below:

On October 17, 2009, Mr. Tik Tung WONG was appointed as
the company secretary and authorised representative of the
Company.

On December 30, 2009, Mr. Tik Tung WONG was appointed as
an INED, the chairman of each of the audit committee and

the remuneration committee of China Energy Development
Holdings Limited.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman & CEO

Hong Kong, April 9, 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1> & in Wod &

Maintaining an effective and solid corporate governance
framework is one of the top priorities of the Company. This
includes informing our shareholders of our corporate practices
in our Annual Report. We have complied with all the provisions
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the accounting year
ended December 31, 2009, except for deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1 which is explained in the following relevant
paragraphs.

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board, sound internal control, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders.

A. DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board
We are governed by a board of Directors (the “Board”)
which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company. Our Directors are
collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the
affairs of the Company.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.1 The Board (continued)

The Board meets regularly, normally four times each
year at approximately once every three months and
additional meetings will be arranged if and when
necessary. Regular Board meetings schedule of each
year is normally made available to all Directors at
the beginning of the year and any amendments to
this meeting schedule will be notified to Directors at
least 14 days before a regular meeting. Special Board
meetings will be held as and when necessary. Matters
on transactions where Directors are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests will not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions and a
separate Board meeting shall be held where INEDs
who have no material interests shall be present
in the meeting. In addition, Directors considered
having conflict of interests or material interests
in the matters before the Board are required to
declare their interests and abstain from voting for
the relevant resolution.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors for
attending regular Board meetings and other meetings.
A package containing agenda and all the relevant
information is normally despatched to the Directors
three days in advance of the relevant meetings.

Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The
Company Secretary assists the Executive Chairman in
preparing the meeting agenda, and each Director may
request the inclusion of items in the agenda. Directors
are also consulted on matters to be included in the
agenda for all reqgular meetings of the Board.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in detail
and draft minutes are circulated to all Directors for
review and comment before being approved by the
Board immediately following the meeting. All the
minutes of the meetings are properly kept by the
Company Secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors during normal office hours.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. EE(&)
A.1 The Board (continued) A1ESE(E)
The Board met four times in 2009. The attendance 209 ZEFERITTARNEH - BE
of individual Director at these Board meetings is ERREESTEgRCHEERNAT
as below:
Number of meeting =P8 4
Executive Directors: HITESE -
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE FNEEL 4/4 100%
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE FXWRLE 4/4 100%
Mr. Tik Tung WONG AR & 414 100%
Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI (note 1) FRRER A (RT3 118) 171 100%
Non-executive Director: HHTEF -
Ms. Kam Har YUE REBERE 114 25%
INEDs: BUFHITEF -
Mr. Boon Seng TAN PR 3 A e 2/4 50%
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE (note 2) FEREA(MTE2E) 0/1 0%
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG ok JE 3 5 A 414 100%
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN (note 3) FRER A (M E31E) 212 100%
Average attendance rate T H R R 75%
The Company has also taken out appropriate insurance ARARNMAHEEBEEHERR
cover for our Directors in respect of legal actions URESFELaABEMEYERET
taken against Directors and officers. The Board reviews BIRERE EZFTFRIRR
the extent of the insurance cover every year. ZAIREE o
Notes: P &E
1. Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI resigned as an Executive 1. FFEREA BH2009F7A1HBET
Director of the Company with effect from July 1, RARMITES -
20009.
2. Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE resigned as an INED of 2. FTEREHEH2009F6A3ABET
the Company with effect from June 3, 2009. RARVEILIFATESR -
3. Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN was appointed as an INED of 3. FEEAEAE2009F9A2HBES
the Company with effect from September 2, 2009. ERERBVEILIFNITES -
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE is the Executive Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer. The Board considers
that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the
management. This is because the Board has adopted
clear guideline as to the power and authority of the
Board and the management. There is a guideline as
to the power and duties of Chief Executive Officer.
The details were set out fully in the corporate
governance report in 2005 annual report.

In addition, the Board which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals meets regularly to
discuss issues and operation of the Group. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Group to make
and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

As Executive Chairman of the Company, Dr. Richard
Man Fai LEE has to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and that Directors receive adequate information,
which must be complete and reliable, in a timely
manner.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.3 Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three Executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and three INEDs. The Listing Rules require
every listed issuer to have at least three INEDs, at
least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, one
of the INEDs, is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Each of the three INEDs has
confirmed his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 annually.

Two of the three Executive Directors and the Non-
executive Director are family members. Dr. Richard
Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, both of
whom are Executive Directors, are the sons of Ms.
Kam Har YUE, a Non-executive Director and brothers.
Save as those disclosed herein, Board members do
not have any family, financial or business relations
with each other.

The biographies of our Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management Profiles” section
in this Annual Report. Details of the biography of
the Directors seeking re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting to be held on June 1, 2010
are set out in the circular issued by the Company on
or about April 27, 2010 sent to shareholders together
with this Annual Report. The Company also maintains
on its website, http://www.wokeehong.com.hk, an
update biography of the Directors.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal

of Directors

Non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed
for a specific term of two years, subject to re-
election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. All Directors, including those appointed
for a fixed term, except for Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE,
the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, are subject to the retirement by
rotation provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company.
A Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition shall hold office until the
next general meeting.

According to the Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
Company Act, 1991, no director holding the office
of chairman or managing director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation as provided in the Byelaws
of the Company. In order to comply with Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code that every director
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years, Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE, the
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, sent confirmation to the Company that
he would voluntarily retire from his directorship at
future annual general meetings of the Company at
least once every three years, and being eligible for
re-election, would offer himself for re-election at
the relevant general meetings.

The Board has not established a Nomination Committee
for reviewing new appointment of Directors and
senior executives and management succession plan
for Executive Directors and senior executives. Any
Director can nominate potential Director candidate.
The whole Board undertakes the duties collectively
of selection and assessment to ensure all candidates
to be selected and appointed as a Director must be
able to meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is
to be appointed as an INED should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.5 Responsibilities of Directors

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a
package of orientation materials setting out the
required duties and responsibilities of Directors
under the Listing Rules and other relevant statutory
requirements of Hong Kong. Newly appointed Directors
are invited to attend a briefing session on directors’
duties and responsibility under laws and regulations
conducted by legal professional. Our Directors are
kept informed on a regular basis on the latest
development of any latest changes to the regulatory
requirements. All our Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development
seminars and/or courses to update their skills and
knowledge on the latest development or changes in
the relevant statutes, Listing Rules and corporate
governance practices.

The functions of Non-executive Directors have included
the functions as specified in Code Provision A.5.2(a)
o (d) of the CG Code except for the Code Provision
A.5.2(c) of the CG Code to the extent that the Company
does not have a nomination committee.

The Company has adopted the standard set out in
Appendix 10 — Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"),
of the Listing Rules, in relation to the dealings in
securities of the Company by the Directors and
employees of the Group. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, during the year ended December 31,
2009, the Directors have complied with the standard
set out in the Model Code.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.6 Supply of and access to information

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far
as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent in full to all
Directors in a timely manner and at least three
days before the intended date of a Board meeting,
an Audit Committee meeting or a Remuneration
Committee meeting.

EXeBRESFHEREIEEYL
WEBASEGREEAR - IA

The Board and each Director have separate and

independent access to the Group’s senior management.
All Directors are entitled to have access to board EELHERENESS MG
P

papers, minutes and related materials. DRtk R AERBEM K -

B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND B. EERSREE A B 2 Hr i
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B.1 HBAKE - ABRRIFE

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration

and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee was established in
accordance with the CG Code. The existing members
of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Boon Seng
TAN, Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, both of whom are
the INEDs and Mr. Tik Tung WONG, an Executive
Director. Mr. Boon Seng TAN is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are adopted with
reference to the CG Code, including the specific duties
set out in Code Provision B.1.3(a) to (f). During the
year, the Remuneration Committee did not hold any
physical meeting and all resolutions were approved
by means of written resolutions.
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B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND B. EEREREBABEZHM(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration B.1 HEMKY REKRKE(E

and disclosure (continued)

The Remuneration Committee has adopted a set of TMEZEEEERM —EREKKIE
policy and guidelines to govern its administration in 5 UftERZ  BERERBEEASE
reviewing, considering and fixing the remuneration EELSMEBAB ZFHMNE
packages and benefits of Directors and senior F o R2009F B - FMEZEESE
management of the Group. During the year 2009,

the Remuneration Committee had:

—  made recommendations to the Board in relation - BB TEEREHEZE
to the renewal of the service agreements of an HRmEEgRbgs &
Executive Director; and

- fixed the payment schedule of non-executive — HIEBTESTHFN AR
directors’ fee. % -

Tz BEeeRcH AR A
ARRMEFE - FHZEEER

Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary. Draft and
final versions of the minutes of the Remuneration 50 8% 2 1) i K A 18 hiv 72N 35 3K 32 Er B
Committee meetings are sent to all members of ZEGEBENE  UEBRKEERR
the Remuneration Committee for comments and #hf o

approval.

C. BERZXE
C.1 BigHeE

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial reporting

Management shall provide such explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board
to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for
approval.

EREARNEZSRER D NBE
REHMER  BEFGAURIE
Rigtt PIHt ER R R A E R
ELBRBEORTE
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT C. BEREZH(E)
(continued)

C.1 Financial reporting (continued) C.1 UBHRE (&

The Directors are responsible for overseeing all
financial aspects of the Company and for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing accounts
of each financial period, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended December 31, 2009,
the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants;

—  selected and applied consistently appropriate
accounting policies;

— made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable; and

—  prepared the accounts on the on-going concern
basis.

The Board is accountable to its shareholders for a
clear and balanced assessment of the Company’s
financial position and prospects. In this regard, the
Directors are responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment to annual and
interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements
and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements. Financial results of the Group
are announced in a timely manner in accordance
with all statutory requirements, particularly the
timeframe stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the
Listing Rules and the Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
(continued)

c.1

Cc.2

Financial reporting (continued)

The Group's external auditors are HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng (the "Auditors”). The statement of the
Auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out on
pages 52 to 53 of this Annual Report.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern was reported
on by the Auditors.

During the year 2009, the Auditors have performed
audit and non-audit services and their remuneration in
respect of audit and non-audit services is HK$650,000
and HK$538,000 respectively.

Internal controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk
management system, which is designed to provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement of management and financial
information and records or against financial losses
or fraud.

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group. The key procedures that
the Group has established and implemented are
summarised as follows:

—  Segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the
Group;

and

- Monitoring the

performance;

strategic plan

C.

BERZE(E)

C.1

C.2
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
(continued)

C. BERZE(E)

C.2 Internal controls (continued)

—  Designing an effective accounting and information
system;

—  Reviewing systems and procedures to identify,
measure, manage and control risks including
reputation, legal, credit, market and operational
risks;

—  Handling price-sensitive information by setting
out the procedures and policies;

— Updating the internal control manual when
there are changes to business environment or
regulatory guidelines;

—  Reviewing by Audit Committee for the report
submitted directly from external consultants;
and

—  Following up with various departments to ensure
timely implementation of the recommendations,
and report the status to the management
periodically.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding
good corporate governance practices and internal
control system. In response to the volatility in
global financial markets and unstable momentum
of economic recovery, the Group has implemented
a series of measures and continued to engage
external consultants to conduct an annual review
and make recommendations for improvement and
strengthening of the internal control system. Such
review is conducted with reference to the principles
outlined in Internal Control and Risk Management — A
Basic Framework issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. In respect of the
year ended 31 December 2009, the Board considered
the internal control system effective and adequate.
No significant areas of concern which might affect
shareholders were identified.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT C. BEREZE(HE)

(continued)

C.3 Audit Committee C3EZRLZER
The Audit Committee was established in December E iz E B @ R1998F12H318 KK
31, 1998. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Vo BRLZES BESGEEFTY
Committee are reviewed annually and have included KEZTEOELEELSTUNEXE

the duties set out in Code Provision C.3.3(a) to (n) C33(@ZEMEHIN 2BE - %V?

of the CG Codes. The existing members of the Audit
Committee comprise Mr. Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Ying
Kwan CHEUNG and Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN, all of whom
are INEDs. Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr. Cheung, being a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
has the appropriate professional qualification and
experience in financial field.

During the year, the Audit Committee has conducted
three formal meetings and discharged its responsibilities.

%Aﬁﬁﬁaﬁ%ﬁxiﬁi
JESR ST E R FHELLE ﬂﬁﬁi
FRITEZ - REMAEERERZE
BE2XEF REEAEBRBHAR
SHMAEEFEERE B LA
NEEE BEBEEIUWKEESR
I RAEER o

FA BERZBEEART3IREAE
BUBITHEME -20095FREZE

Attendance of individual member at the Audit Committee EENEZHBEEROT :

meetings in 2009 is as below:

Number of meeting =P8 3

Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE (note 1) FEREA(MEEIE) 0/1 0%
Mr. Boon Seng TAN PR A SR A 2/3 67%
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG ok JE 3 S A 3/3 100%
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN (note 2) FRERE(MEFE2IR) 2/2 100%

Average attendance rate FHHEER

The principal duties of the Audit Committee included
reviewing the financial controls, internal control
and risk management system, annual report and
accounts, interim report and accounts.

Notes:

1. Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE resigned as an INED of
the Company with effect from June 3, 2009.

2. Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN was appointed as an INED of
the Company with effect from September 2, 2009.

67%

%V%%AZIEﬁf&%@ﬂM
HEE  ATEERRREE G
E EBEFTFERSKEEEB - $%ﬁ
HRERE -

GEE

1. FHEREAH2009F6A38 £E T
NNRVBYLFERITESE ©

2. FREBELEBA09FIA2HEES
ERARPIELIFNTES
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
(continued)

C.3 Audit Committee (continued)
The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Audit Committee during the year 2009:

— met with the external auditors to discuss the
general scope of their audit work and the
matters related to the audit of the financial
statements for the years ended December 31,
2008;

—  reviewed the audit issues raised by the external
auditors;

— considered and recommended to the Board
adoption of new accounting standards;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for
approval of the audit fee proposal for the Group
for 2008;

—  reviewed the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the year 2008;

— reviewed the interim report and the interim
results announcement for the six months ended
June 30, 2009;

—  reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system of the Group;

— reviewed and considered the report of the
annual internal control review of the Group;

— reviewed the non-audit services provided by
the auditors of the Company and assess the
independence and objectivity of the external
auditors in relation to their provision of non
audit services;
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT C. BEREZE(HE)

(continued)
C.3 Audit Committee (continued) C3 ERZEES(HE)
- reviewed the related party transactions and - BRZHREATRSRESTIHH
compliance of the relevant Listing Rules and FHRAIREBR &FTEBER

accounting policies in relation thereto;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit - RANERZEGIBESHE:
Committee; and )54

—  discussed the annual and interim budget of the - AmAEECZFERFHE
Group. E

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been ERECREEZZERE

addressed by the management. The work and findings EFEH -BRZZESEMESTENR

of the Audit Committee have been reported to the EETERAEHER - FRN - BE

Board. During the year, no issue that brought to the ErEEGMMELERE RS2

attention of the management and the Board was of BETRAERFERATIARKE -

sufficient importance to require disclosure in the

Annual Report.

Full minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are kept BERZEggR AR EH

by the Company Secretary. Draft and final versions RARBIWMEFE BREZEGER

of the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings IR R ERERERGEZTER

are sent to all members of the Audit Committee ZEEERBEKE  UECSKEEZEARK

for comments and approval. The Interim and Annual g - EREZEEGLERHNARALZ

Reports of the Company have been reviewed by the PERE RFW -

Audit Committee.
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D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD D. EEg2HcER

D.1 Management functions D.1 EXE &

The Board oversees the Company's strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies
and policies of the Group. It also monitors and
controls operating and financial performance and sets
appropriate policies for risk management in pursuit
of the Group's strategic objectives, and delegates
the implementation of strategies, and day-to-day
operation of the Group to the management. The Board
is entrusted with certain reserved powers which were
fully described in the corporate governance report
in the 2005 Annual Report.

D.2 Board committees

Apart from the Audit Committee (particulars are
disclosed under C.3) and the Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1), the Board
has also established three other committees of the
Board, namely the Financial Control Committee, the
Executive Directors’ Committee and the Operation
Review Committee. The composition and functions
of the respective board committee were set out in
the corporate governance report in the 2005 Annual
Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective communication

The Company follows the practice that at the annual
general meeting, a separate resolution is proposed
in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-election of Directors. In every annual general
meeting of the Company, the Chairmen of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee or
the members of the respective committees or their
respective appointed delegates are present to answer
questions of shareholders.
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

E.2 Voting by poll

The Company informs shareholders of the procedures
for demanding a poll by incorporating them in the
circular for annual general meetings and special
general meetings. In addition, in every general
meeting, the chairman of the meeting provides an
explanation of the procedures for voting by poll at
the commencement of the meeting. The procedures
for conducting a poll were incorporated in the circular
for the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman & CEO

Hong Kong, April 9, 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
T SL A% BT R &R

B &3 EH oA

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 54 to 185, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at December 31,
2009, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
(L VAR QI

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’'s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at December 31, 2009 and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, April 9, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

v RYA
%m/Eu\ E\ﬁﬁ%\%

For the year ended December 31, 2009

HZE2009F12 8318 ILEE

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
I BET T BT T
Turnover EER 5 1,240,716 1,308,229
Cost of sales 85 & B AN (1,078,437) (1,059,901)
Gross profit EM 162,279 248,328
Other operating income E b ERA 7 5,932 16,863
Distribution costs bal=ID %N (102,596) (103,520)
Administrative expenses TIRER (187,439) (182,479)
Fair value gains/(losses) "EWENTE
on investment properties Wz, (KEi8) 17 740 (641)
Reversal/(write-down) of BEHEME
properties held for sale e CRE)
to net realisable value ER IR FEE 610 (2,250)
Loss from operations REER 8 (120,474) (23,699)
Finance costs M%ER 9 (9,236) (8,298)
Restructuring costs BHEH 16 (10,081) -
Impairment on available-for-sale AHESREE
financial assets Z A 28 (6,000) (9,000)
Impairment on goodwill EERE 20 (3,176) -
Provision for guarantee EREE 14 - (950)
Transaction costs for a —IEFUREE
terminated acquisition 2R 15 - (6,008)
Share of results of associates JE{REE & N R LA 23 (95) (18)
Share of result of a jointly FE(R—RHRA
controlled entity EH B EAE 24 (1,729) (3,000)
Loss before tax BREAIEER (150,791) (50,973)
Income tax expenses P58 & X2 10 (399) (8,079)
Loss for the year REEEE (151,190) (59,052)
Loss attributable to: FE{LEE .
Equity holders of the Company RARERFERA (141,225) (68,869)
Minority interests D ERR R (9,965) 9,817
(151,190) (59,052)
Loss per share attributable to EATERIEE AEMN
equity holders of the Company ZEBREE
— Basic and diluted (restated) —EAREF(ED) 11 HK$(0.09)# 7t  HKS$(0.05)8 T

REIEFIBSAEZMERAT B RERZ A

D EFBL o

The accompanying notes on pages 63 to 185 form an integral
part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A e 4 W R 4R R

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Loss for the year REEEIE (151,190) (59,052)
Exchange differences on translation & /GINESE £
of foreign operations B BE 5, 2= 58 487 215
Total comprehensive income AEEZHEHWALE
for the year (150,703) (58,837)
Total comprehensive income EBhE2EBALRE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company KABIREZIZTEA (140,530) (68,884)
Minority interests DY R (10,173) 10,047
(150,703) (58,837)

The accompanying notes on pages 63 to 185 form an integral M FE63ZF185H L M A AP Ew*zx 2 A
part of these financial statements. D EFR D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A oa MBIk DR

At December 31, 2009
7R2009F12 A31H

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 53 BT BT T
Non-current assets kERBEE
Investment properties BEMHE 17 17,740 17,000
Property, plant and equipment Y - ﬁ}%&*“ﬁ 18 60,125 56,415
Prepaid lease payments A AERTY 19 26,023 26,712
Goodwill HmaE 20 30,189 31,611
Interests in associates RN 3 23 - 95
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ECeREE 28 15,252 21,527
Deferred tax assets BEFIRE E 36 - 10
149,329 153,370
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 221,825 234,664
Properties held for sale, at net RIEREMEZ
realisable value AR EE 21,760 21,150
Trade and other receivables BoERREMEIEER 26 183,529 249,504
Derivative financial instruments ?}TE@E&IE - 98
Amounts due from associates JFE L B 2 B 508 27 49,451 39,834
Amount due from a jointly JE Y — 4 H?‘ il
controlled entity BRENIE 27 - 2,119
Other financial assets at fair HEAa AR FEF ABZE
value through profit or loss B e REE 29 10 6
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMkRE&EEEE 30 151,973 164,030
628,548 711,405
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables BoERREMEMNER 31 345,340 330,489
Bills payables e 4% 32,080 14,383
Tax payables JE @ IA 205 2,418
Amounts due to related companies  JE1BEEE A B 5 IE 33 959 944
Obligations under finance leases 14614 'JH;@ZHEQ
— due within one year HEE® 34 88 -
Borrowings — due within one year 1FAEBZER 35 145,384 152,919
524,056 501,153
Net current assets RBEEFRE 104,492 210,252
Total assets less EEHABER
current liabilities REBEE 253,821 363,622
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

> > sy e
e M B R R (HE)
At December 31, 2009
7200912 A31H
2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Obligations under finance leases 1FRIPIEME
— due after one year HEE® 34 308 -
Borrowings — due after one year 1FEBBZER 35 34,165 37,709
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE 36 15 12
34,488 37,721
Net assets EERE 219,333 325,901
Capital and reserves BEERRREE
Share capital [ 37 45,013 29,403
Reserves "B 163,685 275,690
Equity attributable to equity RABIERFFAA
holders of the Company FE(G = 208,698 305,093
Minority interests LR EED 10,635 20,808
Total equity BRER 219,333 325,901
The accompanying notes on pages 63 to 185 form an integral R EE63E E185B Z M E AR EHREK 2 T A
part of these financial statements. S E|ER D o

The financial statements on pages 54 to 185 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on April 9,

2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

EF

MRES4EF1858 2 M F R EEE 22010
ARORHERRIETELH THESAKRE

%
EREE

Director

EF

Annual Report 2009 463 57




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
IS NS

At December 31, 2009
72009F12A31H

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
WaE BET T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 18 513 794
Investments in subsidiaries RWBRRZERE 22 266,243 266,213
266,756 267,007
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R R EAth B UK BR 3R 4,401 5,209
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U B B8 A /) 5RIR 27 80,751 60,216
Amounts due from associates JiE U Bt 8 X /) SRR 27 197 197
Amount due from a jointly JE s — A L [R) 42= )
controlled entity B REFRIA 27 - 195
Other financial assets at fair value  HiLARAFEF AEZ
through profit or loss W EEE 29 10 6
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEER 32 315
85,391 66,138
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 51 R K E At JE 5 BR 3K 744 1,213
Amounts due to subsidiaries ARl NG 27 273,610 293,322
Amounts due to related companies & BB A B I8 33 441 441
Financial guarantee contracts MBERELN 3,475 3,445
278,270 298,421
Net current liabilities REBAEEFHE (192,879) (232,283)
Net assets EEFHE 73,877 34,724
Capital and reserves EATERTE AEM
attributable to equity EXARREE
holders of the Company
Share capital [ 37 45,013 29,403
Reserves & 38 28,864 5,321
Total equity B 73,877 34,724

The financial statements on pages 54 to 185 were approved R E54EF185E 2 MR L EE 52010
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on April 9, F4AIB#AERKETELHR TIEERKE

2010 and are signed on its behalf by: EERE -
Director Director
FE £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Ao ME 4R 8 B) R

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FREERSEARE
Equity (Accumu-
Capital Share component of [ated losses)/
Share Share redemption  options  Exchange convertible Contributed Other  Retained  Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve loannote  surplus  reserve profits  interests Total
TARERH
g2EE  EAR R (BHESR)  SHBRR

Bx  RiHaE BE BEEE ENRE EEBS HARR RHBRE REW i GEl
HKSO00  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O0D  HKSOOO  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000
AETL RMTL ARTn  BETR A¥Tn BETR A%Tn EETR AMTR EETn BETR

(note)
(W)

At January 1, 2008 H008F1 718 255,314 4,960 916 2,017 (a.170) 185 - 151,236 (30,080) 22,476 402,854
Other comprehensive AEEERZEHA

income for the year - - - - (15) - - - - 230 15
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (B8) /BH - - - - - - - - (68869) 90817 (59,052)
Total comprehensive income AERRENALE

for the year - - - - (15) - - - (68,869) 10,047 (58,837)
Redemption of convertible BOTRRENRE

loan note - - - - - (185) - - 185 - -
Arising from capital reduction Ellatiey:%d (229.782) - - - - - 98 - - - -
Elimination of accumulated losses A EEB A

upon capital reorganisation - - - - - - (2978 - 098 - -
Issue of bonus shares BOOR 5,106 - - - - - - - (5,106) - -
Increase in minority interest BENELFER

resulting from acquisition SYRREREN

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (1,715 (11,715)
Cancellation on repurchase of DREERR

shares (1,235) (4,960) 1,235 - - - - - (1,441) - (6,401)
Lapse of share options BEARELH - - - (180) - - - - 180 - -
At December 31, 2008 and R2008512A318

January 1, 2009 R2009%1818 29,403 - 2,151 1,837 (4,185) - - 151,36 124,651 20,808 325,901
Other comprehensive REEEMBZERA

income for the year - - - - 695 - - - - (208) 487
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (141,225 (9,965)  (151,190)
Total comprehensive income AEERENAEE

for the year - - - - 695 - - - (14,225)  (10,173)  (150,703)
Issue of shares Bl 15,000 25,648 - - - - - - - - 40,648
Issue of shares upon exercise of KRR RRER

share options Bk 610 1,620 - (414) - - - - - - 1,816
Issue of share options ¥EEIRE - - - 1,671 - - - - - - 1,671
Lapse of share options BRARERN - - - (465) - - - - 465 - -
At December 31, 2009 R2009E128318 45,013 17,268 2,151 2,629 (3,490) - - 151,236 (16,109) 10,635 219,333
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(CONTINUED)
Ao BE i B B SR (K

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE20096 128318 IEFE

Included in the above is the Group's share of post-acquisition ~ _ERBEAEEEGEE QR 2R Rt

accumulated losses of associates, as follows: BB FBUT
HK$'000
BT T
At January 1, 2008 M2008F1 A1H (77,044)
Loss for the year FREE (18)

At December 31, 2008 7200812 A31H

and January 1, 2009 }2009F1 A1H (77,062)
Loss for the year FANEE (95)
At December 31, 2009 720094F12 A31H (77,157)

Note: The other reserve of the Group was transferred from the share B 5T REE 7 B A B TR B 112002669 518
premium account pursuant to the capital re-organisation on BT ZRAEHEERARNRER -
September 18, 2002.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the year ended December 31, 2009

HE2009F12 831 HILEE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Operating activities R
Loss before tax PR AT E 1B (150,791) (50,973)
Adjustments for: BAEHA TR :
Share of results of associates FE(REE = N A A 95 18
Share of result of a jointly JE At — R A R4 )
controlled entity BERES 1,729 3,000
Interest income FLEIA (2,575) (8,812)
Interest expenses ME X . 7,867
Finance lease charges BMEHEER 5 28
Depreciation e 16,449 12,794
Amortisation of prepaid T8 1~ 18 & S0 IE # 8
lease payments 691 306
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME - WER&ZE
property, plant and equipment 2 B8R (Was) 6,086 (1,046)
Fair value (gains)/losses on other EM AT EFABTZD
financial assets at fair value ERMEEATE
through profit or loss (W), B8 (4) 11
Fair value losses/(gains) on TTESMITARTE
derivative financial instruments &E, () 98 (98)
Provision for guarantee EOR A - 950
Reversal/(write-down) of BIEREMERE CRE)
properties held for sale ZR B EE
to net realisable value (610) 2,250
Write down of inventories GEREZ IR FE
to net realisable value 8,070 -
Fair value (gains)/losses KEMERTE
on investment properties (Wezs) /18 (740) 641
Impairment on available- AL ESREERE
for-sale financial assets 6,000 9,000
Impairment on goodwill 2R (B 3,176 -
Share-based payment expenses i A - R 2 1,671 -
Operating cash flows before R EEESEBA
movements in working capital KREBERE (101,844) (24,064)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL, (M) 4,828 (82,774)
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 1 2K F B FEUR 51
and other receivables (g ) 67,055 (47,518)
Increase in amounts due JIE LS B 2 X ) Z0 TR 3 A0
from associates (9,617) (25,574)
Decrease/(increase) in amount JE Uy — 2K B 45 I B A
due from a jointly controlled entity  FXIERE 2 (1 0) 2,119 (2,119)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 13 2% f E {th [ 1 BR )32 0 13,470 16,291
Increase/(decrease) in bills payables [E[ZEE 1,7 Crid) 17,697 (22,375)
Decrease in amounts due JE 1~ A Bt 1 B R IR R
to related companies (3,252) (399)
Cash used in operations REMARE (9,544) (188,532)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBEBFEH (2,364) (4,811)
Overseas tax paid Eﬁxiﬁﬂ\fﬂlﬁ (235) (1,006)
(2,599) (5,817)
Net cash used in operating REXBFARES TR
activities (12,143) (194,349)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTINUED)

mAa B e ER(HE)

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T
Investing activities E S .
Purchase of property, plant BEWE  BWENIEE
and equipment R (28,661) (50,061)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  B&EM&E
plant and equipment FT15 3} 18 B 2,520 2,734
Proceeds from disposal of available- HEF L ELREE
for-sale financial assets e IA N 275 -
Capital injection to a jointly FEA—HHARESER
controlled entity . - (3,000)
Capital injection to an associate FEAN—MEBE QR - (114)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from WM B A RRE
acquisition of subsidiaries A G ) F88 47 (10,065)
Interest received B F 8 2,575 8,185
Net cash used in investing REEXBEFMARSFE
activities (23,244) (52,321)
Financing activities MEXL
New bank loans MERITE R 656,929 557,194
New other loans MEEME R 13,834 3,392
New obligations under finance lease #75] g & & & 396 -
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIR M PTG IA 42,000 -
Issuing expenses BITX (1,352) -
Proceeds from exercise TEEEBERKREMRGHIE
of share options 1,816 -
Payment for repurchase of shares 8% [O] AR £ 1t 3K - (6,402)
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (671,638) (463,725)
Repayment of other loans EEEMER (3,884) (8,443)
Redemption of convertible loan note &[0 A] # ik 51 = & - (30,000)
Repayment of obligations under BEMEHEES
finance leases - (1,109)
Interest paid EfAE (8,806) (10,104)
Finance lease charges paid ENRmEHEERR (5) (28)
Net cash generated from MEXBHRERESFHR
financing activities 29,290 40,775
Net decrease in cash and HeRBEEEER
cash equivalents WA R (6,097) (205,895)
Cash and cash equivalents M1A1BZzERS
at January 1 kRESLZEEER 157,122 363,366
Effect of foreign currency INEEREE B
exchange rate changes 948 (349)
Cash and cash equivalents B12A31BZH S
at December 31 REEEEHEAR 151,973 157,122
Analysis of the balances of RekBeEHEER
cash and cash equivalents EeRoW
Being: Al
Cash and cash equivalents BehBECEEEAR 151,973 164,030
Bank overdrafts RITE X - (6,908)
151,973 157,122

The accompany notes on pages 63 to
part of these financial statements.

185 form an integral
&N E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company is disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report.

The Company is a holding company with major subsidiaries
engaged in import, marketing, distribution and after-sales
service of high quality, branded products serving customers
in the Asian region and, in particular, the markets of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Hong Kong, Macau,
Singapore and Malaysia. The products include principally
cars and car accessories, motor yachts, helicopters, premium
fashion apparels and accessories, air-conditioning and
refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car audio
and electronic products, other electronic and electrical
products and property investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. These financial statements
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on April 9, 2010.

—REHR

ARABIRBAREEZMERLZ ZARER
NE ERDEREBARXIMARAA
(TB¢ P l) £ - "B EMM =R &
TELEE 2 MU N ARFRA A EF B

BT -

ARRARR—HEERAR  HX2WEB AT
HEEEmMERIED  MHEE "
DHNERRYE - BEPBRTIMNERE -
WAREARKME(NHEH]) - FE
BT MR REREESHERE - 1
HNERT BB TERTERN - #B
BRE - BT SERREEMS  ZEAR
RREmM FERE NETENETE
o HtEFREREREDEKRE -

GREMBRERNBE(BIARG ZNES
B2 o B EKRMN2010F4H9B HE
Ee L ETIRETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009

HZE2009F12 8318 ILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied all of the new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(the "new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

"HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 20 (Amendment)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 38 (Amendment)

HKAS 40 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 &

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial
Instruments and
Obligation Arising
on Liquidation

Intangible Assets

Investment Properties

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
Operating Segments
Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty
Programmes

Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation

Transfer of Assets from
Customers
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRS
issued in 2008, except
for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective
for annual periods
beginning on or after
1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRS
issued in 2009 in relation
to the amendment to

paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior years.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of
Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements)
and changes in the format and content of the financial
statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments.

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments (Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements and liquidity risk.
The Group has not presented comparative information
for the expanded disclosures in accordance with the
transitional provision set out in the amendments.

FERHMEREETEBHBRSE
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BB BREER 2008F H M 2 AT
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7200957 A1H
R FE
HERERZES
B RELERE5H
ZIEETRIBR )

2009F Bl 2 BT

SRR 2 B
BREHE LG EL
£395 2 E£805
fEH 285

BREMBREER
SCHEY)

BT E SN - MR MR EFT R BT
BEENYBHEANEERRNFEIBEF
B2 BRREREATE -

BRBEENE1R (BB 25K
E

FR G ENE1R(LET)SIAETH
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AR ZEMBERRZ 2 TARBEEAR

B

= °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 5
as part of Improvements
to HKFRSs issued in
2008!

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 20092

Related Party
Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements'

Investments in
Associates’

Classification of Rights
Issues*

Eligible Hedged Items'

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 28 (Amendment)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters?
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-
time Adopters?
Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment

Transactions?
Business Combinations’

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(relating to the
classification and
measurement of
financial assets)’

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

Distribution of Non-cash
Assets to Equity holders’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments?®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,

2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2009 and January 1, 2010, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after February
1, 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2011

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after July 1, 2009.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which term collectively included Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations
(the “Interpretations”) issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative financial instruments) and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to December 31 each year. Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority interests’ share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Prior to January 1, 2009, losses applicable to the minority
interests in excess of the minority interests in the
subsidiary's equity are allocated against the interests of
the Group except to the extent that the minority interests
has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3
Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values
at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or
disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised
and measured at fair value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TERTBE(E)
(continued)
Business combinations (continued) EBEH(E

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company'’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

3.

TESHBRR(A)

REBERRZRE(E)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are Eﬁﬁ%&TZ%F BENRABTDNGETH#
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements mAR A NFEE MWK - REERE -

using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially at
cost as adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, from
part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

72 WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #i it

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangement that involves the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to
as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of a jointly controlled
entity are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of net assets of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the jointly controlled
entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEK(E)
(continued)
Goodwill HE

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to
January 1, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity
for which the agreement date is before January 1, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or the relevant
jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
of net assets and operations of subsidiaries or a jointly
controlled entity after January 1, 2001, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from January 1, 2005 onwards,
and such goodwill (net of cumulative amortisation as at
December 31, 2005) is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating
unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see
the accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after
January 1, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or a
jointly controlled entity (which is accounted for using
proportionate consolidation) for which the agreement date
is on or after January 1, 2005 represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or jointly controlled
entity at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESEEK(E)
(continued)
Goodwill (continued) EHE(E

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after
January 1, 2005 (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEGTHE(E)
(continued)
Revenue recognition PN

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown, net of returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised
as follows:

WaBEAREREEBTHEEHR MR
BB B ERR B AFE - KaEEm
BRE - BRI REEARERZ
HERIIMR o WA T EAERER

Sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered HEEMBATTRREREm fr"ﬁﬁézji
and the significant risks and rewards of ownership of ot E b R EHREETEEREER

the goods have passed to the buyer.

Maintenance services income is recognised when services
are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a

REFBBATIR R IRE R HER -

MBUWAREEIAGA - AR AREELS

time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and REREBRMNE(AEZemERE 2 MEr
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate ﬂi}(fﬁimu EEBNTBEZHEE@FE L
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts ME)FE

through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

Commission income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

REMEZHS RN REBEEEZFH
ANEARRER

& U AT B A B AR 75 B FE AR -

1B PSR WA T AR R U B
BMERRD T ARK -

Bz R

Annual Report 2009 4£3% /5




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TERTBE(E)
(continued)
Segment reporting DERE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type of class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETBEE)
(continued)

Leasing (continued) HE(E)

The Group as lessee KEFZAHEA

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liabilities to the lessors
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligations. Finance costs are
charged to the consolidated income statement over the
terms of the relevant leases so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant leases. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land

Interest in leasehold land is accounted for as operating
leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for
as investment properties under the fair value model.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGTHE(E)
(continued)
Foreign currencies HhEg

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Group’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETBEE)
(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued) SN (4E)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(the exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after January 1, 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
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period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in NHER °
the exchange reserve.
Borrowing costs BERAA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TERTBE(E)
(continued)
Retirement benefit costs RIKERNEH

Payments to defined contribution retirement schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years, and it further excludes items in the
consolidated income statement that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEK(E)
(continued)
Taxation (continued) BE(E

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated at cost or fair
value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

3.

TEEHERER(E)

M~ BERRE(E

ME  BERRBZIE - T EKAR
Brihat =B - mEMFTZ A ERFERN
BRI - FRERZFRMT ¢

Land held under Over the unexpired IR ERZZ X5 H A ) 4 F B
medium-term lease term of lease 2 b

Buildings on land held 2',- 5% ERPERO LN 2',-5%
under medium-term lease E2EF

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the MEEE 20% SR AV HA N

lease term

Furniture, fixtures 10 - 20% B RERRE  10-20%
and equipment

Machinery and tools 20 - 33", % HeEERTA 20 - 33'.,%

Motor vehicles 20 — 25% A 20 - 25%

Motor yacht 5% T B 3 5%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the relevant leases.

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as
a finance lease. To the extent that the allocation of the
lease payments between the land and buildings elements
can be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land are
reclassified to prepaid lease payments under operating
leases, which are carried at cost and amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. Alternatively, where
the allocation between the land and buildings elements
cannot be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land
continue to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which
are held for their investment potential, any rental income
being negotiated at arm’s length.

From January 1, 2009, investment properties under
construction have been accounted for in the same
way as completed investment properties. Specifically,
construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying

3.
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amount of the investment properties under construction. WEWMEZ A EEREREE 2 HZ E0
Investment properties under construction are measured EZRDRNBEEEHAZEREANER -

at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any
difference between the fair value of the investment
properties under construction and their carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Prior to January 1, 2009, the leasehold land
and building elements of investment properties under
construction were accounted separately; the leasehold
land element was accounted for as an operating lease
and the building element was measured at cost less
impairment losses, if any.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEK(E)
(continued)
Inventories FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks, cash investments with a maturity of three
months or less from date of investment and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the end of the reporting period, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBEK(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments otz =t

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of
the four categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below.

EREBELENARERTAANEF —
T RS RAERSEREEN
THEE ERMEERABNSIURFE
AR EERRREREERRBIRSINK
RKARFEFABENEHEELSR
BERIN)  RUSTERTTACHEE
KBEZAFEXIMFIRE - WESRE
EXTRBEERENG - BAAFETA
BEA R HEANE R IB S AR -

AEEZEREES D RUE  BRARX
FEFABGENSREE - ERNEER
B BEIHARERAHHEZERE
E-eRMEEZMALEFBERDEYR
RPAMELERER - ERBENHETE
BEBRERTHENRE 2HEAREE
EZTREERE  SBHESBEERBZ
SETBERBAMT -

Annual Report 2009 4£3 85




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGTHE(E)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) TRMITE(E)
Effective interest method ERFEE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for financial asset other than those financial assets
designated as at financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, of which interest income is included in
net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has
two subcategories, including financial assets held for
trading and those designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

(a) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

(b) it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

(c) itis aderivative thatis not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBEK(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMITE(E

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:

(a) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

(b) the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

(c) it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEETBERE)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) @I E(E )

Loans and receivables B REW

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets ﬂ&ﬁ‘%%ﬂlﬁﬂiﬁﬂ%’iﬁ?ﬁ i

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

ARNERTSHEZETESREE -

in an active market. At the end of each reporting period R THREZZERERR - ERRER
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables /T)\ ( PREESREMERZIE BeRk
(including trade and other receivables, cash and cash HEER - EUEZERARFIEKE

equivalents, amounts due from associates and amount due
from a jointly controlled entity) are carried at amortised

H H% BB IR ) E\,ffF'JZZ%% L
Z B AR AT R B 2 Bl 2 B E B B AR

cost using the effective interest method, less any identified (FETXEmMEEZRERE H2H
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of GETHR) o

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets RHELHEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that AHEESREEDWIEERAEEESE

are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories (set out above). At the end of each reporting

AEM(Wm L) ERIMIETEESR T
H o RITHREZS i&iﬂﬂﬂi Al g

period subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale EEHEEURTENE - FEELR
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in H2EKAANER - TRIEESHHE
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income BTRE BEEZcREERLENRE

and accumulated under the heading of investments

ERETHE  ERZANKESHFERR

revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed BHREEARSEEN»EEER(FH
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the TXeMEEZBERBE  #F2HEH
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the ) e

investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition
(see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEEBR(E)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) eI A(E)

Impairment of financial assets 2R EE B E

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair REREHRTHEREEE S RED
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of R MEEATEFABRZZEMEER
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial Sho MEERBBBEETEMEE T NER

assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 7 to 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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2200912 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETBEE)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) ERITE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 2R EERE (&)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments

AHEERAREZBREBRETENER

will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. HM B EAER - RESBEEATFESN
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss EAENEEERRRERD - A HEE
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale BHEREMS - WHRERATE G I
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently RBRMEARRBEERE R —FHEE
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment B - REEBESEEREE -

can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The
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accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities T e
and equity instruments are set out below.
Effective interest method g/fgx,ﬂé %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities designated
as at financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGTHE(E)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) TRMITE(E)
Other financial liabilities HutemEeE

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies, bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Convertible loan note

HeRmAERRESERMEMBENK
B ENBEBARNE  RITEREBE
HEAE  DEAERN A EHEHENX
AN

iR B EIE

Convertible loan note issued by the Company that contain AEERTZABRREREREBSERE
both financial liability and equity components are classified ERERIHD  WRYPHERESHEE

separately into respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
loan note and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded call option for the
holder to convert the loan note into equity, is included
in equity (convertible loan note reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible loan note is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible loan note reserve until the embedded option
is exercised, which the convertible loan note reserve and
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible loan note reserve will be
released to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the option.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETBEE)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRMITE(E

Convertible loan note (continued) EKREHNEE (&)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible BOABRREREZEREBERAR IR AL

loan note are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross

PISSANBCLLA - DEEEEEMEREH
0 o ERES AR ARRE < R BN AR EZ(ERE

proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component @k - BHEEHRNAB 22X HKEFTA
are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating BERD 2 EEEY AR E AR AR
to the liability component are included in the carrying REFEHRFHRE -

amount of the liability portion and amortised over the

period of the convertible loan note using the effective

interest method.

Equity instruments RATA

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event
the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair
value of fixed-rate bank borrowings (fair value hedges)
and hedges of highly probable forecast transactions for
foreign currency exposure (cash flow hedges), or hedges
of net investments in foreign operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEETBERE)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) E@mITE(E)
Financial guarantee contracts BBEREHN

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designed as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE Bt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A31ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEGTTHE(E)
(continued)
Properties held for sale HFEMEENE

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or the
impairment loss recognised in prior years is no longer
exist or have decreased. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the carrying
amount of the asset other than goodwill is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options which are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
The impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

For share options which are vested at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Accounting for derivative financial
instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates
certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment
(fair value hedge); and (ii) hedges of highly probable
forecast transactions (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of the hedged items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(continued)

Accounting for derivative financial
instruments and hedging activities
(continued)

(i) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
immediately, together with any changes in the fair
value of the hedged item that is attributable to the
hedged risk. The adjustment to the carrying amount
of the hedged item for which the effective interest
is used is amortised to profit or loss as soon as an
adjustment exists. The adjustment is based on a
recalculated effective interest rate at the date the
amortisation begins.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group
revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
(ii) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as the underlying
hedged items are recognised. When a hedging
instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised when the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity
is immediately transferred to the consolidated
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B i R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE(E)

(continued)

Accounting for derivative financial

instruments and hedging activities

(continued)

(iii) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting and those not designated as
hedges

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting and those
not designated as hedges are recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s W& MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
B ZE2009612A31AIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision for impairment loss on trade
and other receivables

The provision for impairment loss on trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and
on management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each account. If the
financial conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis
at the end of each reporting period, and makes provision
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at the end of each reporting period and makes provision
for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment for goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. As at December 31, 2009, the carrying
amount of goodwill was approximately HK$30,189,000
(2008: HK$31,611,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R ME G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgment to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will accordingly be adjusted in the relevant tax account
in the year in which such determination is made.

BREREGTHEREEZEMAGTTRE
EEJCY

PTETERHEMEMT A A FE

ENERTSEEEZEMITAZAFET
RAGERDE - AEBERAE AN
EMZEIADERRENSREHKE
B 2 TS AF R AR o

FRi§#H
AEEEARRZREERBAMEN - &
EERBECAMENBEAFLERH
B - MEZRBBERTARN T LES
B ABERESNMFLEEFERNZHRA
REEHFE -

TURNOVER EER
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Sales of goods to customers, HERMM TR

less returns and discounts HERR B &0 1,162,548 1,232,657
Maintenance service income REHEBRE WA 77,431 74,589
Rental income e WA 737 983
1,240,716 1,308,229
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mgt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZ2009F12A31BIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
with effect from January 1, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure
standard that requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources
to segments and assessing their performance. In contrast,
the predecessor standard (HKAS 14 Segment Reporting)
required an entity to identify two sets of segments (business
and geographical), using a risks and returns approach.
In the past, the Group’s primary reporting segment was
business segment. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted
in a redesignation of the Group's reportable segments as
compared with the primary reportable segments determined
in accordance with HKAS 14.

In prior year, the Group organised into four operating
divisions: cars and car accessories, electrical appliances,
property investment and fashion apparels and accessories.
In current year, the Group has reclassified its previously
reporting segments into three operating divisions: car,
electrical appliances and fashion apparels and accessories.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its segment information.

The three operating and reportable segments are as

H2009F1A1HR  AEBECEHRMKES
M RELERFRIELE D] - BB
BREERBFESHR A —BIFEEER  BE
KESBHNHRDBRIEAEEFEZE R
BEABIPRERESPERFHERRM
EHEMEEAEEMARISH ZRIBRE
BEE - AFEM  WERR S (BE S
EBIEA D ERE DAT —REERFE
FA I\ B A0 [B] 3R 5 )& LA 3 Bl i 18 0 F8 (7%
RipE) o LA AEBNETEREHLA
BEBLE - HRBREBSGIELE145
BEENETERESE  KNBEBTBRE
ERFSFEOERALEBETRTRE S

B

RE—FE AEBEZEXBHE D BUERL
HEPT - RERTEEMN - B MER
BERBRREH RNAFE > KNEEK
HBEEHZEZBEN DB SEE L
Fl: )R8 B hFEREH - ZFEM
RAEEZRATZHNREN 2 HLE -

ZEEEERBRESBNT

follows:

Car Trading of cars and related a8 BEEAERABREYTR
accessories and provision RATE B IE RS
of car repairing services

Electrical appliances  Distribution of air-conditioning = DEERER  wERE
products, audio-visual AEEER
equipment, car audio and Hfth & &5

other electrical appliances

Fashion apparels and  Distribution and retail of B & DiH R T E R RACAD
accessories fashion apparels and Bic £ff

accessories
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R ME G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEEHR (&)
Segment revenue and results PHWBNRERES

2009

Fashion
Electrical apparels and

Car appliances accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

hE BF BERRESH St
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BH HokE
HKS'000  HKS'000

BETT BETR R¥Tr B%Tn BETx  B¥Tx

Turnover L
External sales NS IR 976,356 177,193 70,598 16,569 - 1,240,716
Inter-segment sales 5B REENE - 2,184 3 - (ne) -
Total turnover Ex8E 976,356 179,377 70,630 16,569 (2,216) 1,240,716
Inter-segment sales are ¥BIRRE

charged at arm's length REFEERUR
Results E4
Segment results NEEE (48,461)  (2,017)  (24,959)  (20,882) - (96,319)
Interest income MEWA 2,575
Unallocated corporate expenses APBARLM (26,730)
Loss from operations TEFE (120,474)
Finance costs YHER (9,236)
Restructuring costs BHEER (10,081)
Impairment on available-for-sale A nESRERL

financial assets BE (6,000)
Impairment on goodwill BEnE - - (3,176) - - (3,176)
Share of results of associates BIEBENTEE - - - (95) - (95)
Share of result of a TEfh— A R )

jointly controlled entity EEzE - - (1,129 - - (1,7129)
Loss before tax BRAIEE (150,791)
Income tax expenses FERRR (399)
Loss for the year rEEER (151,190)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mgt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZ2009F12A31BIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEEX (&)

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAE
2009
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Car appliances accessories Others Consolidated
RE B BEREH Hit &EKE

HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
AT E®TR BETR RBRTn  BETrn

Consolidated statement of ZAHBRAE
financial position

Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 341,693 74,891 79,249 81,410 577,243
Interests in associates N A=UNGIP 3 - - - - -
Unallocated corporate assets KD BAREE 200,634
Consolidated total assets BEREE 771,877
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities NEAE 260,019 39,877 32,328 22,507 354,731
Unallocated corporate APELEEE

liabilities 203,813
Consolidated total liabilities ~ #xA B & 558,544
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEER (&)
=

Other segment information Hittp EHE R
2009
Fashion

Electrical apparels and
Car appliances accessories Others Unallocated Consolidated
e % BERES B X298 &KeKE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
A%Tr B¥Tn BT AW EMTR  ARTR

Other information At &R
Capital expenditures BATH 23,429 1,218 1,579 81 2,354 28,661
Depreciation e 10,620 482 2,334 257 2,756 16,449
Amortisation of prepaid BREE

lease payments FEEH - - 1 2 652 691
Fair value gains on investment VI

properties RTENE - - - 740 - 740
Reversal of properties held RENENERRZE

for sale to net realisable value IEREE - - - 610 - 610
Gainl(loss) on disposal of property, ~ MENE - MERZEL

plant and equipment Yiz/ (B#8) (2,433) 159 (3,834) (93) 15 (6,086)
Impairment on available-for-sale AfnESRERL

financial assets AE - - - - 6,000 6,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. Z7EER (&
Segment revenue and results PHERERES
2008
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Car  appliances accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated
AE EX BEREH Eth 8%  GAEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABETT A%Tn B%Tr A%Tr BT BETn
Turnover L
External sales OEBEHE g 1,004,038 196,120 48,725 59,346 - 1,308,229
Inter-segment sales $BREENE - 149 25 - (174) -
Total turnover BEBE 1,004,038 196,269 48,750 59,346 (174) 1,308,229
Inter-segment sales are 2B RAEE
charged at arm's length RERERYD
Results £
Segment results DECES 36,858 (405)  (20,740)  (11,006) - 4,707
Interest income MEMA 8,812
Unallocated corporate expenses FAERATE (37,218)
Loss from operations BepE (23,699)
Finance costs HHER (8,298)
Impairment on available-for-sale AHHESREEY
financial assets A (9,000)
Provision for guarantee BRER (950)
Transaction costs for a —RX R
terminated transaction RHRA (6,008)
Share of results of associates EEBELTEE - - - (18) - (18)
Share of result of a jointly JE (b — R LR 2 5]
controlled entity E - - (3,000) - - (3,000)
Loss before tax BiaEE (50,973)
Income tax expenses FERFAR (8,079)
Loss for the year rEEHE (59,052)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities PTEEEREE
2008
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Car  appliances  accessories Others Consolidated
E Bes WEREH it  HAKAE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ABTT  ABTT  ABTT  ABTn  ARETR

Consolidated statement of ZAMBRRE
financial position

Assets BE
Segment assets NREE 384,660 79,793 93,742 91,858 650,053
Interests in associates iN:L-NSA: £ - - - 95 95
Interests in a jointly controlled R—EEFEEHEE

entity 4 - - - - -
Unallocated corporate assets KA BAREE 214,627
Consolidated total assets BeBAE 864,775
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities NEAE 250,268 24,101 36,886 15,805 327,060
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA B AR EE 211,814
Consolidated total liabilities ~ #RA B AR 538,874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEEX (&)

Other segment information Hitp EEHR
2008
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Car  appliances accessories Others Unallocated Consolidated

nE % HRREH i A58 KekA
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
ARTR  ARTn  EMTR  ARTR  ARTn  ARTR

Other information HtER
Capital expenditures BAX M 12,657 269 6,243 276 30,616 50,061
Depreciation N 1174 478 2,307 244 2,591 12,794
Amortisation of prepaid BREENEER

lease payments - - 9 25 m 306
Fair value losses on RAMEZATERR

investment properties - - - 641 - 041
Write-down of properties held BELENERER

for sale to net realisable value EREE - - - 2,250 - 2,50
Fair value losses on other B ATESABRL

financial assets at fair value TREEL

through profit or loss RTERE - - - - i n
Gain/(loss) on disposal LEWE  BRRRE

of property, plant W/ (B8)

and equipment 1,028 1 (86) - 103 1,046
Impairment on available-for-sale AHHESREEY

financial assets A - - - - 9,000 9,000
Provision for guarantee BRERE - - - - 950 950
Segment results represent the profit/(loss) generated DHEEBESIEREEZ RN,/ (&
by each segment without allocation of finance costs, B) TERVBER ZHER  AH#
restructuring costs, impairment on available-for-sale HESREEZRE BERE - EBHE
financial assets, impairment on goodwill, share of results EAREE Bh—HARERERE:
of associates, share of result of a jointly controlled B EREE —BERIEWEBZIRIKA
entity, provision for guarantee, transaction costs for a &Fﬁ BHAX o hTIAKE 2 FELER
terminated transaction and income tax expenses. This is RERBRDERTEDERBR ZMEST
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker 275K

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment measurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R ME G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong,
Singapore, Malaysia, PRC and Macau. The following
table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the
goods/services:

PHEER(E)
i & & R

AEEZEBEBZDMNER ~ IR -
RS - FERIRF - NRZMETS
IMAEE 2 EXBE(THER R 2

REH)

Turnover by
geographical market

WEMEIE2EEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong B 957,668 1,030,466
Singapore AN 72,828 81,395
Malaysia SR 31,294 35,804
PRC a3 170,663 153,566
Macau SR FT 8,263 6,998
1,240,716 1,308,229
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZ2009F12A31BIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Geographical information (continued)

TEER(E)
1 & B K ()

BMEEMAEMRRDOITZIERBEE(TE
BEEREEERTESRIA)ZER

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and derivative

financial instrument) analysed by the geographical area BT
in which the assets are located:
Carrying amount
of non-current assets*
FRBDEEZREE"
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Hong Kong B 70,765 64,967
Singapore TN 1,002 359
Malaysia R ik 249 239
PRC i 62,013 66,268
Macau BRFI 48 -
134,077 131,833

deferred tax assets.

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Non-current assets excluding financial instruments and

A -

7. HEEZE WA

O RDEESERER T ANMELERA

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Commission income malA 2,808 3,297
Licence fee income for the EmpDHEEZ
right of distribution of products hi 1 & U A - 2,000
Management fee refunded BEREERE - 580
Interest income B WA 2,575 8,812
Exchange gain, net ME W W H E R 266 769
Fair value gains on derivative TTEERMIAZ
financial instruments N ERE - 98
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment F 2 W - 1,046
Sundry income HIEA 283 261
5,932 16,863
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W B e R ME G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

8. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

8. REEE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss from operations has been EEED R -

arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration ZER B & 867 948
Cost of inventories recognised as WRARI 2 FEKAR

expenses (included write-down of (RIEFEREZIEINR

inventories to net realisable TF{E XS 8,070,0007T

value of approximately HK$8,070,000 (20084 : /& 460,0007T))

(2008: HK$460,000)) 1,078,437 1,059,901
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  JE{ 70 & FIBEH §5 691 306
Depreciation of: e

Owned assets BEERE 16,391 12,493

Assets held under finance leases RMEHEEE 58 301
Fair value losses on other HMUAAFEFAERZ

financial assets at fair TREEZ

value through profit or loss N EEE - 11
Staff costs, including directors’ BB -

emoluments BREEME 107,681 118,454
Operating lease rental in respect R REFZ

of land and buildings: KEREHRES -

Minimum lease payments =IEEE 51,635 39,800

Contingent rentals AR 1,202 2,224
Share-based payment expenses R 1,671 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZ2009F12A31BIEFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBER
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Interest expenses on: FEZER :
Bank loans, trust receipts loans SEANERHEEREL
and overdrafts wholly repayable RITER ~ 185T
within five years WIEE R KRB 7,117 4,970
Bank loans wholly repayable SEBRDHERZ
after five years RITEN 799 878
Other loans wholly repayable SEANZEMEEZ
within five years H B 890 57
Effective interest expense on ATMERERERE 2
convertible loan note BERMEXZH - 1,962
8,806 7,867
Finance lease charges BMEHEER 5 28
Bank charges RITEA 425 403
9,236 8,298

Annual Report 2009 4



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FREH A X
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: BANSEHOIBRBEAFERBEEE 2K
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong AT FERR T & F3216.5% (20084 : 16.5%)
Kong for the year. FTE -
Outside Hong Kong taxation is calculated at the rates BBUINRIBIRES B RUERER 2R1T
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. MEFFH -
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current tax: REFHIA -
Hong Kong BE - 6,953
Outside Hong Kong BB LASN 386 1,116
386 8,069
Deferred tax: (note 36) RIERIE (T 5361H)
Hong Kong &5 - _
Outside Hong Kong BB AN 13 10
13 10
Income tax expenses attributable to KRR REWEB A A
the Company and its subsidiaries JEMG TS TR X 399 8,079
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

10. FR BB X (&)
7N £ € 75 TR B 32 R) B B A5 A S 48 B Bk 4D

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the

loss before tax as follows: ™
2009 2008
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
BT T BT T

Loss before tax B AR 1B (150,791) (50,973)
Tax at the Hong Kong REBFIEH

Profits tax rate of 1 216.5%

16.5% (2008: 16.5%) (20084F : 16.5%) (24,881) (16.5) (8,411) (16.5)
Tax effect of share of JE 1t — FE 2[Rl 422

result of a jointly BEREEC

controlled entity mGEE 285 0.2 498 0.9
Tax effect of expenses that FLFLH B B 0]

are not deductible for MERAZZ

tax purposes TRy 38,709 25.7 7,649 15.0
Tax effect of income that M E

are not taxable for tax mERW 2

purposes mGEE (31,661) (21.0) (2,312) (4.5)
Under provision in respect AFFETT

of prior year ] 208 0.1 331 0.6
Utilisation of deferred AR SERIART

tax assets previously R 2 BT

not recognised HEEE (553) (0.3) 6 -
Utilisation of tax losses A ERIART

previously not recognised  fERZ FRIEEE - - (133) (0.2)
Tax effect of tax losses RTHERTIIBERE

not recognised G E 19,922 13.2 8,763 17.2
Effect of different tax rates R E b RDEER

of subsidiaries and FS— =N

associates operating in & —/NC]

other jurisdictions TRABEZ & (1,630) (1.1) 1,688 3.3
Tax expense and effective  AFEFHIBHZ

tax rate for the year PR R 399 0.3 8,079 15.8
There was no share of tax attributable to associates at 720094 %2008 12 A31H » WHEE(L

v

December 31, 2009 and 2008. Bt N A Z EIRRLIE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

11.LOSS PER SHARE 11.EREE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$141,225,000 (2008:
HK$68,869,000) and on the weighted average number
of 1,603,184,015 (2008: 1,525,254,170 (restated)) after
adjusting for the effects of share subdivision approved
on February 12, 2010. The basic loss per share for 2008
had been adjusted accordingly (note 51).

Diluted loss per share for the years ended December
31, 2009 and 2008 were the same as the basic loss per
share. The Company's outstanding share options were
not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share
because the effects of the Company’s outstanding share
options were anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

12.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12.EENEEMS

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEB =
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine BT E 45958 £ F(20084F - 8%
Directors (2008: eight Directors) were as follows: EF)BAZHMEOT ¢

Other emoluments

Hit# &
Retirement
Salaries Performance benefit
and related scheme
other incentive contributions
benefits payments B Total
Fees ek HREBRR BAFE  emoluments
ne HttBH HEzRe ZHR Hesw
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T BRI BETT
Executive Directors HITES
Richard Man Fai LEE FNE - 1,329 1,056 12 2,397
Jeff Man Bun LEE 3¢/ - - - - -
Tik Tung WONG THRR - 889 13 12 914
Waison Chit Sing HUI SR
(resigned on July 1, 2009) (20097 A1 BEHT) - 479 6 6 491
- 2,697 1,075 30 3,802
Non-executive Director FHTES
Kam Har YUE R B 34 - - - 34
Independent Non-executive BIFHITES
Directors
Raymond Cho Min LEE ZER
(resigned on June 3, 2009) (7200956 A3HEHT) 38 - - - 38
Boon Seng TAN PR 90 - - - 90
Ying Kwan CHEUNG o JE 90 - - - 90
Peter Pi Tak YIN FlRE
(appointed on (7200949728
September 2, 2009) BZE) 30 - - - 30
248 - - - 248
Total for 2009 2009F M5 282 2,697 1,075 30 4,084
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R ME G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

12.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 122.EEREEMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEBNE (&
Other emoluments
Hiwfi
Retirement
Salaries  Performance benefit
and related scheme
other incentive  contributions
benefits payments RIR Total
Fees Fek HEBRR BFEE emoluments
e Hiv@h REz® AR Mewm

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT  ARTT  ABTT  ABTT  BEETR

Executive Directors YTEE

Richard Man Fai LEE EXE - 2,499 3,500 12 6,011

Jeff Man Bun LEE E3¢i7 - - 350 2 352

Tik Tung WONG THR - 981 1,000 12 1,993

Waison Chit Sing HUI FHEERK - 1,046 400 12 1,458

- 4,526 5,250 38 9,814

Non-executive Director FHTES

Kam Har YUE 248 34 - - - 34

Independent Non-executive BIFHITES

Directors

Raymond Cho Min LEE FER 90 - - - 90

Boon Seng TAN B & 90 - - - 90

Ying Kwan CHEUNG R 90 - - - 90
270 - - - 270

Total for 2008 2008F 458 304 4,526 5,250 38 10,118
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mgt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZ2009F12A31BIEFE

12.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12.EEREEMNE(E)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) EE=M= (&

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(b)

The performance related incentive payments are
determined as a percentage of the turnover or the
profit after tax of the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included one Director (2008: two Directors), details
of whose emoluments are set out in note 12(a)
above. The emoluments of the remaining highest
paid individuals were as follows:

HEXBRAMBIESNKREARAE
BrzeXBABRBRRAEN ZETE
DHETE °

A 4B AT 7] B R A £20094F 2008
FNRAMNBLEFERERREWE
T -

A 220094 20084128318 It
FE AEEVERNESZFEM
e EAMAXRERZ RSB
BEs(E -

(b) BEME

FRSUFMESALR  MI/E
=(2008%F : 2UEFR) - HEE 450
EREXMEE12)ERNRKE - 8
THMERALZHMEOT ¢

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other benefits FekEMERN 9,045 6,986
Retirement benefits scheme BRIRBREE 2

contributions R 35 24

9,080 7,010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R ME G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

12. DIRECTORS’” AND EMPLOYEES’ 12.

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)
The emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

EEREEME (&)

(b) EEBS (B
RTHHeEE ez At
BT

2009 2008
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAH BE AR

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 7%1,000,0017C —
75 #1,500,0007T 2 -

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 75 #1,500,0017C —
7##2,000,0007T - 2

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 75 #2,500,0017C —
7%3,000,0007T 1 1

HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 714,500,001 7C —
75 #5,000,0007C 1 -
4 3

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the non-director, highest paid employees as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

13.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 13.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund (“MPF")
scheme for all qualifying employees of its Hong Kong
subsidiaries. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees. The retirement benefit cost charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted
to approximately HK$2,181,000 (2008: HK$2,644,000),
which represents contributions paid or payable to the
fund by the Group at the rates specified in the MPF
Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mgt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZ2009F12A31BIEFE

13.

14.

15.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
(continued)

For subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong, contributions
are made to the defined contribution schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes
at the relevant jurisdiction. The contributions made by
subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong during the year
amounted to HK$3,216,000 (2008: HK$2,871,000).

PROVISION FOR GUARANTEE

Pursuant to a share purchase and subscription agreement
dated June 30, 2006, a subsidiary of the Company provided
a guarantee amounting to a maximum of RMB11,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,500,000 as at December
31, 2009) to cover the warranty and indemnity clauses
stipulated therein. During the year ended December 31,
2008, an amount of HK$8,450,000 has been paid and
HK$950,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement of the Group.

TRANSACTION COSTS FOR A
TERMINATED ACQUISITION

On September 2, 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Smart Apex Holdings Limited (“Smart Apex”),
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement with Ms.
Chu Wan Kam Sabrina, Ms. Yeung Sui King and seven
individuals and one body corporate (the “SKC Vendors”)
which Smart Apex agrees to acquire 80% of the issued
share capital in SKC Group Limited ("SKC Group”) for the
aggregate cash consideration of HK$96,200,000.

On November 12, 2008, a termination agreement was
entered into between the SKC Vendors and Smart Apex.
Pursuant to the termination agreement, the Group agreed
to pay an amount of HK$2,500,000 as compensation in
respect of the termination of acquisition of 80% of issued
share capital of SKC Group. The expenses paid in relation
to this transaction was approximately HK$3,508,000.

13.

14.

15.

RAREREE(R)

ERBEBUIINZHBAR  AEEH TR
HEEEER 2 H]ANEREERIAERZ
PBIARRIRTRAZ L RIEE - AFEEHBI
SNBY B A B 2 3k BB 853,216,000
7L (20084F : ##2,871,0007T) °

ERBE

1R 15 7200696 A30H 25 5] 2 A% 10 W BE &
RBEWH A2A—HHNBRRIRER
% A B #11,000,0007T (52009412 A 31
B E RN 4745 #12,500,0000T ) 2 IR
LAJB 1T 5% tp s FT 51 BR 2 B (R 2 o (B R &
1§30 o P E 22008512 A31H It F 5 -
75 158,450,000 < RIBE X F - MABK
950,000 L E EAEE Z 4R A W KR K T
R o

—ERIEWB 2R KA

2008 9H28 - ARAEZ2E2EWNEB A
RIEEZEBRAERAR([EE])HEEES
7t BEELERIEARIEAE
BBEBEHFDIYEEHHE Btk
BEREKEERBEBEERAR(IEES
BEHETRAZ80%  BRELEREHE
#96,200,0007T °

200811 A12H © BiEE 7 BB IE
MR IEHRE o BEBERIEHE  AEERE
S {7 #2,500,000 T 1F A 4% 1 IR BB B 15
EEDBITIRAZ80%ZEEE - S5
Bz ERHAE3,508,0005T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

16.RESTRUCTURING COSTS 16.EHER

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Group HE2009F12A31B IEFE - AEEHH
embarked on a business restructuring plan as a cost cutting IRHEITRE S EAR S  EREURKARIEE
measure to scale down the non-performing businesses EEMEBRKRBEARNBENES - LR
and to alleviate the operating expenses of the Group. REERNKEEME - RIBXEHEHRE -
Pursuant to the business restructuring plan, certain HE2009F12A3MBIEFE - #THE
tenancy agreements and employment contracts of certain mERETEINERBEOCKIE  WE
staff were terminated and an amount of HK$10,081,000 A %10,081,000THIEHER

was incurred as restructuring costs for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REME
Investment
properties
outside Hong
Kong held
under medium-
term leases
EEB LU
i @R
RANEE
ZREYE
HK$'000
BB T
The Group rEE
Fair value NFE
At January 1, 2008 7200841 A1H 9,600
Acquisition of a subsidiary W kg — Rk B A A 8,041
Decrease in fair value recognised REEEEERERZ
in the consolidated income statement NEERD (641)
At December 31, 2008 and 72008F 12 H31H &
January 1, 2009 200941 F1H 17,000
Increase in fair value recognised RirEEERER
in the consolidated income statement A FEIE N 740
At December 31, 2009 7200912 A31H 17,740
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17.8 R&EW¥ (&)

The investment properties of the Group were revalued
at December 31, 2009 by Raffles Appraisals Limited
(2008: Raffles Appraisals Limited), independent qualified
professional valuers. Raffles Appraisals Limited is the
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to International Valuation
Standards, was arrived by reference to an open market,
existing use basis.

The Group's investment properties are measured using
the fair value model.

The investment properties of the Group are rented out or
available for rent under operating leases purpose, further
summary details of which are included in note 41 to the
financial statements.

The Group had pledged investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$15,060,000 (2008:
HK$14,610,000) to secure facilities granted to the Group
(note 44).

KEFEKLEYZER2009F128318 & 58
VEEMGEMAEFTEERAQE02008
T RHFTFEABERAR)ETEM - K
FEERARABESHEMBEEE &
EEtENREMEHEFEAEEGEE
BREREBER ZEEFEBHKRGEE
B - DiEARMSERREEAELEETT

AEBERENEAERAFERAGE -

AEEEEHREEFLERE ZRKEY
EOBReHE  ARMENE—SFB
NG MKRFEFA41IE -

7N £ B DA BR T B 4975 %15,060,0007T 2 %
& Y2 (20084 - & #14,610,0007T) 1E A&
I EUARTEASEE ZEEEER
(MfsE5E448) -

Annual Report 2009 4

121
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W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - RERRE

Land and
buildings Land and
outside ~ buildings in
Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong
held under  held under
medium- medium-
term leases  term leases Furniture,
EERIUN EER fixtures and
HERETH  REPRH  Leasehold  equipment  Machinery Motor Motor
BNBE  ZNKEZ improvements B andtools  vehicles yacht Total
ZIHREF tHRET  NERE RERRE BERIA RE KB E3
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  RETT BETn BETr BT BETn RETn BETx

The Group 158
Cost or valuation HAESREE
At January 1, 2008 R008E1 A 18 888 - 33,657 35,616 8,499 14,099 17,636 110,395
Eichange difference EREE il - 215 (198) 18 (10) - 36
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ REHEBAF - - 6,394 1,776 - 340 - 8,510
Additions RE - 2,087 16,219 3,099 1,069 1,497 - B39
Disposals e - - (13) (@183 - (3,965) - (8,231)
At December 31,2008 and ~ #2008E12331H

January 1, 2009 0951418 899 2,087 56,362 36,150 9,586 11,961 17,636 134,681
Exchange difference EXEE 1 - 103 499 302 25 - 930
Acquisition of  subsidiary ~ WE—-FEINBAF - - - 18 - - - 18
Additions RE - - 14,899 5,478 5,675 2,609 - 28,661
Disposal e - - el RS (g (3908) - )
At December 31, 2009 009124318 900 2,087 61,74 39,618 14,344 10,687 17,636 147,013
Representing; f%:
At cost A 900 2,087 61,741 39,618 14,344 10,687 17,636 147,013
At valuation e - - - - - - - -

900 2,087 61,741 39,618 14,344 10,687 17,636 147,013
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W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

18.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - HEK&Z®E (&)

(continued)
Land and
buildings ~ Land and
outside ~ buildings in
Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong
held under  held under
medium- medium-
term leases  term leases Furniture,
EERIN Bk fixtures and
BWEREDH  REPH  Leaschold  equipment  Machinery Motor Motor
ROBE  ZNKEZ improvements GH-  andtools  vehicles yacht Total
ZIHREF 1HRET  NERE LERRE RERIA RE HEBEE &g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETr  BETR BEBTn  RETr E¥Tn A%frn BETn BEfx
The Group r%E

Accumulated depreciation  EREiTE

At January 1, 2008 200851818 4 - 20905 30,676 6,400 6,987 862 65,854
Bichange difference EiER - - 155 () - (29) - 103
Acquisiton of subsidiaries ~ WEBHEAE - - 5,141 Ljh) - 205 - 6,188
Provided for the year RERRE 2 52 6,691 2,148 816 21183 882 12,794
Fliminated upon disposals {1 &3 - - (30) (4,279 - (2,364) - (6,673)

At December 31,2008 and 2008128318 ]

January 1, 2009 N09E1A1A 26 52 32,862 29,340 1,216 7,006 1,764 78,266
Bichange difference EXEE - - 45 483 298 19 - 845
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WEE—FNBAT - - - 12 - - - 12
Provided for the year REERE 3 5 9379 2,831 1412 1,870 882 16,449
Eliminated upon disposals HERHE - - (3,740) (1,687) (991) (2,266) - (8,684)
At December 31, 2009 R009% 124318 49 104 38,546 30,979 1,935 6,629 2,646 86,888
Net hook values BERE
At December 31, 2009 009124318 851 1,983 23,195 8,639 6,409 4,058 14,990 60,125
At December 31, 2008 R008E12A318 873 2,035 23,500 6,810 2310 4,955 15,872 56,415
The Group had pledged land and buildings and motor yacht 72009F12H31H - A& E ALK ®E A
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$1,983,000 2 Bl 4 75 %1,983,0007C (20084F : & ¥
(2008: HK$2,035,000) and HK$14,990,000 respectively 2,035,0007T ) X /& %14,990,0007T(2008
(2008: HK$15,872,000) to secure facilities granted to 4 B #515,872,0000T ) 2 T M F K
the Group at December 31, 2009 (note 44). BB EEEREKT  EUABRTAEEZ

EEER(MEFEL4E) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B i R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A318 LFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - BERZE (&)

(continued)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements B vehicles Total
NEEE  RKERRE AE X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT
The Company NN
Cost BAE
At January 1, 2008 7200861 A18 6,272 16,981 1,686 24,939
Additions NE 187 352 - 539
Disposals HE - (3,196) (686) (3,882)
At December 31, 2008, R2008F12 4318
January 1, 2009 and 2009F1 A1 R
December 31, 2009 200912 H31H 6,459 14,137 1,000 21,596

Accumulated depreciation ZREITE

At January 1, 2008 7200851 A1H 6,248 16,445 1,686 24,379
Provided for the year KEEME 45 260 - 305
Eliminated upon disposals & B8 - (3,196) (686) (3,882)

At December 31,2008 and 72008128318 k&

January 1, 2009 20091 A1H 6,293 13,509 1,000 20,802
Provided for the year REEHE 43 238 - 281
At December 31, 2009 R2009%12 A31H 6,336 13,7417 1,000 21,083
Net book values IREFE
At December 31, 2009 200912 A31H 123 390 - 513
At December 31, 2008 200812 A31H 166 628 - 794
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s W& MR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
B ZE2009612A31AIEFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. B HEERE
The Group REH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cost RAE
At January 1 M1A1H 27,709 1,597
Exchange difference ME W ERR 2 22
Additions NE - 26,090
At December 31 M12A31H 27,711 27,709
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At January 1 M1A1H 311 5
Charge for the year REERH 691 306
At December 31 M12A31H 1,002 311
Net book value FREFE
At December 31 M12A31H 26,709 27,398
The Group's prepaid lease REE BN
payments comprise: HERIBABLE
Land in Hong Kong: MREBAAMIE 2 T3
Medium term lease AR AT 25,166 25,818
Land outside Hong Kong: MREBAIMIE 2 3
Medium term lease AR AT 1,543 1,580
26,709 27,398
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEBMEOMATR
Current assets (included in MBEEGGFAESHE
trade and other receivables) o Ko E b FE UK BR X)) 686 686
Non-current assets EMBEE 26,023 26,712
26,709 27,398
The Group had pledged prepaid lease payments with a NEE B B AR & E 2009512 A31H B
carrying amount of approximately HK$25,166,000 (2008; FEEMEMRREEL 24E%25,166,000
HK$25,818,000) to secure facilities granted to the Group 7t (20084 : 725,818,000 ) 2 &~
at December 31, 2009 (note 44). ERE (FIFE5E4418) -

Annual Report 2009 463t 125




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R ME G

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFHE

20. GOODWILL 20. &

Total
waE
HK$'000
BT T

The Group rEER

Cost R E
At January 1, 2008 7200841 A1H 2,905
Acquisition of subsidiaries g aiap= NG 28,824

At December 31, 2008 and R2008F12A31H &

January 1, 2009 200941 A1 H 31,729
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) U B8 — B A A) (B RE 253978 ) 1,728
At December 31, 2009 7200912 A31H 33,457
Accumulated impairment 23R E
At January 1, 2008, December 31, 7200841 A1H ~ 2008412 A31H

2008 and January 1, 2009 20094F1 H1H 118
Exchange difference E W =% (26)
Impairment loss BB 1R 3,176
At December 31, 2009 72009512 A31H 3,268
Carrying value IREE
At December 31, 2009 7200912 A31H 30,189
At December 31, 2008 7220085F12 H31H 31,611
During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Group RELZE2009F 128318 LFE - A&
assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill associated B ERE REMESEE cmE
with the Group's fashion apparels and accessories business. Z AU E S EE o B EE RACETE TS 2 A IR E
The recoverable amount of the fashion apparels and SREN2EFREEMNME  EFEAEKN
accessories operations was assessed by reference to PRI EREF16.52% °
value in use. A discount factor of 16.52% per annum was
applied in the value in use model.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are EEREARER TN TE21HA -

disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mgt R EE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZ2009F12A31BIEFE

21.IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 21.BEZEERS

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the cash-generating unit including fashion
apparels and accessories.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit is
determined based on a value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors covering a five-year period,
and a discount rate of 16.52% per annum.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based
on the same expected gross margins and raw materials
price inflation throughout the budget period. The cash
flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated
using a steady 5% per annum growth rate which is the
projected long-term average growth rate for fashion
apparels and accessories market. The directors believe that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause
the carrying amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations
for fashion apparels and accessories cash generating
units are as follows:

Budgeted market Average market share in the
share period immediately before the
budget period. The values assigned
to the assumption reflect past
experience, which is consistent
with the directors’ plans for
focusing operations in these
markets.

Budgeted gross
margin

Average gross margins achieved
in the period immediately before
the budgeted period.

ABREANANE  AEEHRIEEREE
B BREERNMEH -

ReELBM AT RE SR IRE —IEE
REEFEEE - AERAZHERER
BNERESHEZ —BERAF2UHK
BE - MEBF1652%FHEEX -

BEHAZRSRERNNIREAEHRA
ZHERBEREN X R R HHERBREG
H-ZhFHMEZRERECHEAS%L
REFEBRXELY  ZFERIA/FE
LMz RMFHERE - EFH
= HFEATROSBE s TBHRRMER
ZIEREEAEESY  BI@EPREE
FEBEMZREEBHERKOARS -

B R R B A EA I AR
AZEEBERMT :

BEMSHEAEX EERBEEHNZHA
FHMBEREEX - &
ARZSBERZER
R BRE E R 5 0 I
EFEEIRN%REMS
ZRBEMHEER—
e

BEEME EXBEERAMEMR

g 2 FHEFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

22.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. AME AR ZRE
The Company
¥ NN
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost ERERD - KAE 293,504 293,504
Less: Impairment loss recognised B EERZBERIE (30,736) (30,736)
262,768 262,768
Financial guarantee contract HBERE A 3,475 3,445
266,243 266,213
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at KRABR2009F1N2A3MBZEENE A
December 31, 2009 are shown in note 49. AIE R T E M TEZE 49T A ©
23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. R E N E 2=
The Group
rEEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Share of net assets of JEREE E AR EEFE
associates (note (b)) (B 7E(b)) - 95
Notes: 5T -
(@) On July 3, 2008, MERHES OXY) BRAF, a (a) M20085F7H3H - AR A ZME R R
subsidiary of the Company contributed 20% equity interest REEESORINDBERARNEAREA
of F/BIFRIE S B MR A], a company established in the E #100,0007T( 46 & 7 478 #114,000
PRC with a registered capital of RMB500,000 at a total 7o) EARFEIK Y 2 AE EBIERE
consideration of RMB100,000 (equivalent to approximately EERAFTRAER 220% - EFf&RA
HK$114,000). A AR E500,0007T ©
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W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

RBERNFzER (&)

ByeE - (A&

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23.

Notes: (continued)

AEEBERRZHBERNMBNT

(b) The summarised financial information in respect of the (b)

Group's associates is set out below:

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Total assets BEE 32,349 50,837
Total liabilities wamE (55,525) (43,992)
Net (liabilities)/assets (afE)  EEFE (23,176) 6,845
Group's share of net assets of associates A& EGEE QR 2 EEEE - 95
Turnover e 10,135 7,261
Loss for the year REEEE (29,764) (17,883)
Group's share of results of associates REEEIGE S QA
for the year NEFEFEE (95) (18)
Group's share of other REEEIGEE AT
comprehensive income REFZHMEEBA
of associates for the year - -
Market value of listed securities BRREZAFME 37,448 20,787
Particulars of the Group's principal associates at December REEMR2009F12A3MB 2 T EHE R AIER

31, 2009 are shown in note 50.

HIE AT FEEE50T8 A ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

24.INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24. R—RBEHiEZ4IEREEH

ENTITY
The Group
KEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEEF T
Unlisted investment, at cost REMTIRE - KAE - 3,000
Share of result of a jointly JE i — [ L[R2 )
controlled entity EREEE - (3,000)

Notes: Bt 5
(a) Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity as at (a) BEALER2008F12A318 2 L[ &
December 31, 2008 is as follows: HlIEEFBOT :
Place of Percentage

incorporation/ of equity

registration Particulars attributable
and operations of issued share to the Group
Name of entity ML capital AEEENL Principal activities
EREE REXBE ERITRAFE REBDE FTEXEH
WKH Asia Limited Hong Kong 6,000,000 shares 50% Distribution and retail
(Formerly known of HK$1 each of fashion apparels
as Sweet Years and accessories
Asia Limited)
METEMERRAA e BREEEE 1T 50% DHRTE
QIR ==Y 2 &1 Ry 5 I e £
BRAR) 6,000,000
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W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

24. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

24, R—EHEEVER 2 Ex (F)

Bt : (48D

EHARABRAEGMENEZASERR
ZHIERZHMEFBEEREINAT

(b) The summarised financial information in respect of the (b)
Group's jointly controlled entity which is accounted for
using equity method of accounting is set out below:

2009 2008

HK$000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Total assets BEE - 2,983

Total liabilities weE - (3,430)

Net liabilities BfEFE - (447)
Group's share of net assets of REBEEE— MRS

a jointly controlled entity Bl CEEFE - -

Turnover EERE - 2,418

Loss for the year REEEE - (6,447)
Group's share of result of 7N £2 [ FE A — R 3 R4

a jointly controlled entity FRAFE 2¥E
for the year (1,729) (3,000)

Group's share of other

2] 5% B pE Al — R LR 12 )

comprehensive income of a jointly BERARFEZ
controlled entity for the year Ef2mEKA - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

25.INVENTORIES 25. 78
The Group
AEH

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Finished goods BIFK mm 197,606 212,709
Spare parts T 24,219 21,955
221,825 234,664

Included in the above figure are finished goods of Pt %R 2 %% 48,440,0007T (20084 ¢

approximately HK$48,440,000 (2008: HK$11,944,000)
which have been pledged as security for bank loans

75 #11,944,0000T ) 2 Bk & 0 WA ER
TERZIKF(HEE4418) -

(note 44).
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. ESARKEMEWERR
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade receivables B 5 REIWER R 78,878 128,366
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE (2,465) (1,604)
Total trade receivables, H 5 REIER R
net of allowance for doubtful debts BREEE GRS 76,413 126,762
Deposits, prepayments and E - ERFRKE
other receivables H fth fE UK BR 3R 107,116 122,742
183,529 249,504
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. ESIRRHEHMEWEBRBR(E)

(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net for allowance of doubtful debts at the end of the
reporting period:

PSR HR - B 5 AR MR O R IR
B2ERBAFMT :

The Group
rEH

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days 30 KA 56,834 100,630
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 10,000 10,547
61 to 90 days 61 KZEI0K 2,752 3,911
91 days to 1 year MNKREIF 4,815 8,075
Over 1 year 19 A E 2,012 3,599
Total #Et 76,413 126,762

The Group allows an average credit period of 7 to 90
days to its customers.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses credit
scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. Approximately 91% of the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit
scoring attributable under the credit scoring system used
by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance were
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$6,827,000 (2008:
HK$11,674,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

AEBGETEFPTHIZORZEER -

REMEFAFELA > AEEEREE
DHEFEECEEP 2 EEERMAEME
MEPZEERE TP ZREMFDE
FRE MR - NREBEFFERZEE D
e I E TR A 2 B 5 1 KR
EREPNRERHEEFS

AEEZEHERBYEEABEREES
#6,827,0007T (20084 : % #11,674,0007T, )
ZRWERR - 22BN RE e Ay -
MmASEBE W EBLBERBIBERE - ~EE
I #E R 5% F SRR R A (TR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EZE2009612A318 LFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26 EZERREMEUIRNR(E)
(continued)
Ageing of trade receivables which are CEMERREZE S TREVER
past due but not impaired 2 AR R
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
91 days to 1 year MNKREIF 4,815 8,075
Over 1 year 14 A E 2,012 3,599
Total #wEt 6,827 11,674
Movement in the allowance for doubtful REBREZ22H
debts
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Balance at beginning of the year NS 1,604 4,832
Impairment losses recognised B PE BRI R
on receivables VERIEN = 2,163 966
Amounts utilised during the year FAEBA L - (1,358)
Amounts recovered during the year FRUE &5 (1,302) (2,836)
Balance at end of the year R EF 4R 27 554 2,465 1,604
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually AEBREBEREENBREZE S ERKER
impaired trade receivables with a balance of HK$2,163,000 AR SR 45 82 5 152,163,0007T (20084F : B ¥
(2008: HK$966,000) which were past due and not 966,0007T ) * Z & RE&L D2 @ B R A A
recoverable. The impairment recognised represented the Bl - BEMRBIBERENZEE S ERE
carrying amount of these trade receivables and the Group WHRF 2 BREE - MAAE B B LS4
does not hold any collateral over these balances. MR EMER R -
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W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
B ZE2009612A31AIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

26 ESERREMEWREKRR(E)

EREE 5 EREVRNR Z KRR

The Group
rEE

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Within 30 days 30814 1,319 500
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K - -
61 to 90 days 61 KXE90K - 20
91 days to 1 year MNKRENEF 590 667
Over 1 year 1 556 417
Total R 2,465 1,604

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
ASSOCIATES/A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY/SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

27. Bl ENBEAT, —BHE
BEHERHELQRRE

ZEFREREER - 28 MEETEER
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W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009

HZE2009F12 831 B ILEE

28. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL AtHEZERMEE
ASSETS
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At January 1 R1A1H 21,527 30,527
Disposals & (275) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL ECZeREE
financial assets B E 1 (6,000) (9,000)
At December 31 ®12A31H 15,252 21,527
Available-for-sale financial assets M12A318 > AlEHE 2

at December 31, comprise of: TREERE
Unlisted securities: EBREES
Debt securities without interest and ERMERIBEA
maturity date BEH 252 527
Equity securities (note) f& A FE A (HIRE) 15,000 21,000
15,252 21,527
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEBAMEBOMANT R
Current assets REEE - -
Non-current assets EREEE 15,252 21,527
15,252 21,527
Note: BIsE -
The unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value and ﬂﬁ§1gZHx$é HFIRAFEmMTE - WEHE
are classified as Level 3 fair value measurement. Fair value is BEZBAVEFE  AFEDNFERTREAS

mERA G REEQAFER -
Z R o

£ F910.6%

estimated using a discounted cash flow model. In determining the
fair value, a risk adjusted discount factor of 10.6% are used.

T (%) ARAHE

136 WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED i 5t




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

29.

30.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

29.

HUAFEFABRENEME
E

The Group and
the Company

AEBRALQT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

At January 1 M1A1H 6 17

Fair value gains/(losses) on BN FEFAERD

other financial assets TREEZATE

at fair value through profit or loss &a¥(EE) 4 (11)

At December 31 M12A31H 10 6
Market value of listed securities: BREHFHF2WE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBBNE 2 RARE 5 10 6

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets were
classified as held for trading.

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair values. Fair values of the listed investments
are determined by reference to the quoted market bid
prices available on the Stock Exchange.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving
deposits rate in Hong Kong, PRC, Singapore and Malaysia,
and the effective interest rate of the Group's bank
balances ranged from 0.01% to 0.53% (2008: 0.18% to
13.00%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group included currencies denominated
in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to approximately
HK$10,430,000 (2008: HK$8,974,000) which is not freely
convertible into other currencies.

30.

tieRMEELREERBESFIEESR -

FIEARFEFABRSZEREEDER
FEIER BAEEREZATENZ2EE
BRSNS EABMERE -

RekAEEEERR

RITHEBRTIENEE - PE - FIMERS
KEZZEBZHEFANEGE  A&HE
RITRBZERMNEN T FER0.01%E
0.53%(2008%F : 0.18%Z13.00%) °

RBEHR AEB2RERBESSE
HERREUARBABMNBETABERAKL
BmAEEMEEHE KX %E%10,430,0007T
(20084 : 7#%8,974,0007T) °
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For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

30.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(continued)

At December 31, 2009, bank balances amounts to
approximately HK$114,565,000 (2008: HK$106,565,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 44). The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.
The pledged bank balances carry interest rate range from
0.01% to 1.45% (2008: 0.01% to 4.50%) per annum.

31.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at
the end of the reporting period:

30. R RBEEEEERB (&)

31.

720091283318 - RITE B DB K
114,565,0007C (20084 : 7 ¥106,565,000
TTIEERTEBER ZRITEE 2 KT
m (M 354418 ) - XERBITHFRER
HERITEREEERRER - XERRITLE
BRI EFENF0.01% £1.45% (20084 :
0.01%ZE4.50%):T 8

BEZERREMEMNRR

RIMEHK  BEFERENERZERED
e

The Group
rEE

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Within 30 days 30K AR 28,575 26,627

31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 9,790 12,575

61 to 90 days 61 KXE90K 5,748 7,740

91 days to 1 year NKENF 9,468 6,928

Over 1 year 1F A 4,596 528

Total trade payables B 51T RER RN 58,177 54,398
Customers’ deposits, accruals ®Pile  EBNERK

and other payables H b FET AR K 287,163 276,091

345,340 330,489
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For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

32. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE 32. A RRERERE

The Company issued a 7.25% per annum convertible
loan note in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 on
August 18, 2005 to Hanny Holdings Limited (“Hanny").
The convertible loan note is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The convertible loan note entitles the holder to
convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at any

AN A F2005F8 5188 A 57 Bl & B A [R
AR ([ E ) 81T A& 5B 30,000,000
TLZBFT25% 2 TR ERERE - %A
BRERZENEEAEE  BTFEAA
MR RET R EREEAHE2008
FOASAVEEHBHREEANSHEUEGH

time between the date of issue of the convertible loan AR B R EE B .00 2 IR (E iR
note and the settlement date on September 5, 2008 at KRNRIEBERR - WA RBRERZETTR

a conversion price of HK$1.00 per convertible loan note.
If the convertible loan note has not been converted, it
will be redeemed on September 5, 2008 at par. Interest
of 7.25% per annum will be paid semi-annually up until
the settlement date. Further details of which are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated August
18, 2005.

The convertible loan note contains two components,
liability and equity components. Upon initial recognition,
the convertible loan note was split between the liability
and equity components. The equity component is presented
in equity heading “"Equity component of convertible
loan note”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 10%.

On September 5, 2008, the Company redeemed the
convertible loan note in consideration of HK$30,000,000
and discharge all of the Company's liabilities and
obligations, including interest payment obligations,
under the convertible loan notes.

o ¥ R2008F9ASHIFEEE O -
F1.255% 2 FEBBEBLFIN—REEE
EHH - BEFBHNARQAFR2005F8
R18BZR#hA -

AMEERER D MEAKERND -
Kgmain - RYILHERKR  ATBRRE
REBED REHRERTD - Bmalns
RIABMEERRE RS0 | 2 #m—
W BEHNEREMNES10% -

720089 H5H + AR A UK E B K
30,000,000 CEE AT ERZE - WE
AARBIZEBERET  BEITBEKRER
EBRET2EWHERME -
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For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

32. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE (continued) 32. IRRERFE (&)
The movement of the liability component of the convertible TRREFREEEBEDBOH 2EBH 25T

loan note for the year is set out below: Nk

The Group and
the Company

AEBRAADT
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Face value of convertible loan note Al EREEEE - 30,000
Transaction cost R KA - (1,735)
Equity component =B D - (185)
Liability component on initial recognition 7200548 718 B #] X #E R
at August 18, 2005 BEH M - 28,080
Interest charged 2k ZAE - 8,439
Interest paid B FE - (6,519)
Redemption & [0 - (30,000)
Liability component at December 31 W12A3MB Z & ESHD - -
33. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 33. BB QX BRI
COMPANIES
The Group The Company
xEH AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ARTIT BETrx AETT

Amounts repayable

within one year 1FAEEBLEHE 959 944 441 441
The amounts included in the current liabilities are BARBBREZ2EOERR  RERE
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms BEEEHE - BB A RIBARGIETES
of repayment. The related companies are controlled by PR o

certain Directors of the Company.
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For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE
LEASES

3. EHERK

Minimum
lease payments
REEEMNK
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEETT

Present value of
minimum lease
payments

EEEEMNRRE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T IT

The Group rEH
Amounts payable under BREREHEZ
finance leases: FEATBLEE -
Within one year MMER 100 - 88 -
In the second to fifth FIEFESF
year inclusive 350 - 308 -
450 - 396 -
Less: Future finance charges B : KR AEE A (54) - - -
Present value of HERBHRE
lease obligations 396 - 396 -
Analysed as: ST -
Amounts due within FIRREBEIE
one year shown under TFEREE 2
current liabilities ik 88 -
Amounts due after one year 1F&Z| 82 &% 308 -
396 -

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the average
effective borrowing rate was approximately 5.06% per
annum. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All
leases were on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement
had been entered into for contingent rental payments. The
Group's obligations under finance leases were secured
by the charge over the leased assets.

HZE2009F12831BItFE > FHER

&8 R R B FF =X

#)5.06% * FIEIEE L)

AHEE - AHEAEHERREER
WERIAB SN RIEL T - AEEZ
MEMEBEBHEEEE ZWRLIERM -
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W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

35.BORROWINGS 35. X
The Group
KEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 6,908
Bank loans |ITER 166,192 180,336
Other loan (note) HanER(KIEE) 13,357 3,384
179,549 190,628
Secured (note 44) BEM (M EEL418) 148,913 176,885
Unsecured AR 30,636 13,743
179,549 190,628
The maturities of the above M EFEREBOT
loans are as follows:
Within one year 15K 145,384 152,919
More than one year, but 1F A E
not exceeding two years BETEE2F 7,752 4,921
More than two years, but 2F A E
not exceeding five years B EBR5F 11,031 12,641
More than five years 54 LA E 15,382 20,147
179,549 190,628
Less: Amounts due within one year WA AR RBAEET
shown under current liabilities 16 N B HR < 308 (145,384) (152,919)
Amounts due after one year 1418 5 B B 15 50IE 34,165 37,709
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W5 & KGR

For the year ended December 31, 2009
EHZE2009612A31AILFE

35.BORROWINGS (continued) 35. R (#&])
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal REEEFRCERNEGE(TEREGH
to contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings MEME)WAT -
are as follows:
2009 2008

Effective interest rate: BN &

Variable-rate borrowings FEER 1.40% — 19.20% 2.44% — 8.75%
The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies WAL BB ECAEBEERZEY N
other than the functional currency are set out below: ™~

RMB'000 EUR'000  MYR'000 SGD'000 usb'000

N3 B

ARETT BIftr BETrx Fr ExTr
At December 31, 2009 R2009%12831H 16,347 2,232 2,701 130 293
At December 31, 2008 F22008F12A31H 6,100 633 1,722 1,345 997
During the year, the Group obtained new bank borrowings REAN AEBESSBHNEE
in the amount of approximately HK$656,929,000 (2008: 656,929,0007T (20084 : # % 557,194,000
HK$557,194,000). The borrowings bear interest at market TC)ZHEIRITE R o 2B E R ATISF
rates and the proceeds were used to finance the working KR - IEHERELEESZRE -
capital.
The fair values of the Group’s borrowings at December KNEBEERMN2009F128318 2 A F &
31, 2009 approximate to the corresponding carrying BAERmEMRE -
amounts.
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35.BORROWINGS (continued) 35. 8 (%])
Note: P 5T
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Other loan — secured (note i) HmEm—FEM (M) 2,000 -
Other loan — unsecured (note ii) Ha e —mEm (M EEi) 11,357 3,384
13,357 3,384
i) The other loan is a short-terms borrowing which is secured, ) REHEMERABEM  RFFELD10%
bear interest at approximately 10% per annum and repayable ERR—FANEEZEBENR -
within one year.
ii)  The other loan is a short-terms borrowing which is unsecured, i) ZEHMERAEER. RFFMNEH
bear interest at approximately 19.2% per annum and 19.2%EF B RN —FRNEEZREBER -

repayable within one year.

36.DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES 36. EiEBIBE(EE) AR

The Group KEE
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
MEHEBEFE BEEBE Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT  ARETIT ARETT

At January 1, 2008 2008451 H1H 6 (16) (10)
Exchange difference MW ERE 1 1 2
Charged to consolidated income RERGEBER

statement for the year kR 5 5 10
At December 31, 2008 and 7200812 A318 &

January 1, 2009 200941 51H 12 (10) 2
Charged to consolidated income RERGLEBER

statement for the year kR 3 10 13
At December 31, 2009 720095128314 15 - 15
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36. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
(continued)

The Group (continued)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

36. EXEBE(EE) AE(H)

REE(E
UTRUBREBNZBERERIAE G
I

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBAEE 15 12
Deferred tax assets FEIEFRIEE E - (10)
15 2

At December 31, 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$1,205,811,000 (2008: HK$1,107,000,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
amount of approximately HK$1,205,811,000 (2008:
HK$1,106,939,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The tax losses may be carried forward
either 5 years or indefinitely.

37.SHARE CAPITAL

72009F 12 A31H - REEAIHEIKIERER
F 2z < &) B 7 78 B 18 4975 %51,205,811,0007T
(20084 : #%51,107,000,0007T ) > HH K AL
G BBBIRE WAL ERGRLOBE
1,205,811,0007C (20084F : /& %51,106,939,000
TERELEHBEE - HEBEIEER
Fe R AR o

37. R&

Number of shares Nominal value

g 4= HE
HK$'000
BT T
Authorised: EERA :
At January 1, 2008 of HK$1.00 each M200851 B1HEKREE
7B #51.007T 350,000,000 350,000
Effect of capital reorganisation (note a) EREHZE(MTa) 3,150,000,000 -
At December 31, 2008, January 1, 2009 and 7 200812A31H -
December 31, 2009 of HK$0.10 each 2009F1 A1E R
2009F12 A3 BEKREE
BE£0.107T 3,500,000,000 350,000
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37.SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 37. kA& (&)
Number of shares  Nominal value
R#oEE H{E
HK$'000
BETT
Issued and fully paid: E?&ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬂﬁzﬁ 1
At January 1, 2008 of HK$1.00 each 200841 A1
Hﬁ@@%% 007T 255,314,759 255,314
Effect of share reduction (note b) Wi A 2 522 (i sED) - (229,782)
Issue of bonus shares (note c) BEATATAS (B 5Ec) 51,062,951 5,106
Repurchase of shares (note d) BRI M (FsEd) (12,350,000 (1,235)
At December 31, 2008 and January 1, 2009 BA2008$12H3 A&
of HK$0.10 each 2009 1 A1
FREE %%0.1075 294,027,710 29,403
Issue of shares (note e) BT (B 3e) 100,000,000 10,000
Issue of shares (note f) BT (B EES) 50,000,000 5,000
Exercise of share options (note 47) 17018 SRR
(MiE%E4718) 6,098,000 610
At December 31, 2009 of HK$0.10 each $2009%12A31H
SREEEK.10T 450,125,710 45,013

(a)
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Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held on
April 30, 2008, each authorised but unissued share
was subdivided into 10 shares.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held on
April 30, 2008, the nominal value of each share in
issue reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 by canceling
paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.90 for each
issued share.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held
on April 30, 2008, 51,062,951 bonus shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued for every five adjusted
shares of HK$0.10 each held by the shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company on April 30, 2008. The amount of
HK$5,106,295 was capitalised from the Company's
retained profit account.

T (%) ARAHE

1B 8 AR D B IR R 72200844 A30H 2
TZBREFINRE E@EBZ —BR
HE O BRETEHRBITZRG
A0/ 1D -

1B 8 A D B IR R 72200844 30 H £
TZBRREEBNAG L@EBZ —ER
FR O BBIHEREBETZEH
fE AR #0.900T - BHERE BTG
ZEEBREE1.00TEREBE0.10

JC °

1B 18 A D B IR R 72200844 30 H £
TZBREFNRE E@EBZ —BER
FHZE o BIEMN2008F4 A30H &K
REREAMeREESHEARE
AR E(E B 01070 2 & F R D 31T
51,062,951 % & % 1B 7% ¥0.107T 4L
fi% o 7 8178 5,106,295 2 I B
RARE ZREEFRE AL -
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37.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d)

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the
Company repurchased its own ordinary shares through
the Stock Exchange as follows:

37. RA&(#])

(d)

No. of ordinary
shares at

AE E2008F12831B EFE - K
NAEBBMSIBEREARNS 2 L@
BEEBIT

HK$0.10 each Price per share Aggregate

Date of SREE BRER consideration
repurchase #0102 Highest Lowest paid
f&m A EBREE ESE BEE ENERE
HKS HKS HK$

BET BET BB

August 12, 2008 20088 A 128 485,000 0.50 0.50 242,500
August 13, 2008 200858 A 13H 800,000 0.54 0.51 417,000
August 14, 2008 20088 A 14H 605,000 0.51 0.51 308,550
August 15, 2008 20088 A 15H 460,000 0.51 0.51 234,600
December 16, 2008 2008124 16H 4,000,000 0.53 0.52 2,100,000
December 17, 2008 200812 A417H 6,000,000 0.53 0.49 3,099,700

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.
None of the Company’s subsidiaries repurchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
shares during the year ended December 31, 2009
(2008: nil).

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the independent
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting held on August 6, 2009, 100,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at a placing price
of HK$0.28 each to six independent third parties.
The gross proceed of approximately HK$28,000,000
is intended to be used as general working capital.
The placing was completed on October 30, 2009.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held
on August 6, 2009, 50,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued at a subscription price
of HK$0.28 each to Dr. Richard Man Fai Lee, the
executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The gross proceed of approximately HK$14,000,000 is
intended to be used as general working capital. The
subscription was completed on October 30, 2009.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the then existing shares in all respects.

A% D PR BB B RS FE S o AL =20094F
12A31MBIEFE KRR ZWE QB E
BB - HEKED ARG TMEABRERD
(20084 : #&) -

(e)

1B 15 AR X &) 98 37 B R 2200948 A6
HBETZBRESNAE ERBZ —
THRZEE R EETREK0.287T
M6 B % — & #77100,000,000%
SREEEE010T ZH% - I8
T8 5 BE 4975 128,000,000 7T %t A 1E—
KWEBEBE D o BEEMR2009F10H30
H5ERK °

BAE A A R B B 7A2009F8 56 H £
TZBRREFNARE @By —ER
EEREREESRB0.287TMH
PITEERITREAH T B H L
#750,000,000% & f&% @ (& & #0.10
T2 MBREFHNAER
14,000,000 cHEARIE— M EBES ©
REE 2009910 830H 5EAK °

FAMBERTRNDES T MEZRHE %
T2 ZFRRFMHA -
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38.RESERVES 38. & 1E

The Company PNYNE]
Share Convertible
Capital ~ options loan note
redemption  reserve  reserve Contributed
Share  reserve B%  WEER  surplusAccumulated
premium  EAEE < RKE EXREE DN losses Total
ReEE e ff ff BR ZiER &if
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRI B%Tr E¥ETrn A%Tn ARt A¥%Tn  AETn

At January 1, 2008 #0081 A1A 4,960 916 2,017 185 361,491 (538,329)  (168,760)
Redemption of convertible EERE:T

loan note BHER - - - (185) - 185 -
Arising from capital reduction HIRRAES - - - - 098 - 29,78
Elimination of accumulated losses RRAEAR

upon capital reorganisation EREFEE - - - - (538,329) 538,329 -
Issue of bonus shares Bk - - - - (5,106) - (5,106)
Cancellation on repurchase RREERR

of shares (4,960) 1,235 - - (1,441) - (5,166)
Lapse of share options BRRRELN - - (180) - - 180 -
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (45,429 (45,429)
At December 31, 2008 M2008%12A318

and January 1, 2009 R2009E1 A1H - 2,151 1,837 - 46,397  (45,064) 5,321
Issue of shares ki 25,648 - - - - - 25,648
Issue of shares under RELAREETER

exercise of share options Bfkin 1,620 - (414) - - - 1,206
Issue of share options BIRAARE - - 1,671 - - - 1,671
Lapse of share options BRRRELN - - (465) - - 465 -
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (4,982)  (4,982)
At December 31, 2009 2009128318 21,268 2,151 2,629 - 46,397 (49,581) 28,864
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38.

39.

RESERVES (continued)

The Company (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the Company can make a distribution out of contributed
surplus. However, the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

At December 31, 2009, the Company did not have
distributable reserves available for distribution (2008:
HK$1,333,000).

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On September 5, 2008, the Group contributed HK$3,000,000
for 50% of the issued share capital of WKH Asia Limited
(Formerly known as Sweet Years Asia Limited), which was
accounted as a jointly controlled entity. On September 17,
2009, the Group acquired remaining 50% of the issued
share capital of WKH Asia Limited at a consideration of
HK$16. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisitions was approximately HK$1,728,000.

38.

39.

(&)

RNRA(E)
BREARZIBIFRRE(KRER) &
RAIZBABBRESAIH IR - AT - &
REITBEATBER TERSIORMA RS
FUEBABRBRIEL DK

(a) BB HAGNNRREZNMBEER

BfE =

LEEZAERESEMEREEA
ENHEBBITRALER LD ZEERZ
480

r.m‘tﬂi

° \

2009412 A31H » A RQ &I £ ] 5
IR B (20084 « 7 #51,333,0007T) ©

W kg —E B L E

720089 A5H - REBEHMIEA LR EZE
FIEBAE ZMEITEMER AR (ATFE
HEEEMNERRAG)B50%E TR A
i & 8 #3,000,0007T © 200969 H17
B AEERREMZITEMNERAFTEHT
Z50%E BEITIRA - REABE16T - I
BEAZEELHRBY1,728,0007T ©
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39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(continued)

The net liabilities acquired in the transaction and the

39. WEE—FEM B AR (&)

REXZABEZEEFEREEZHE

goodwill arising were as follows: wm
Acquiree's
carrying
amount and
fair value
WS 2
REER
AFE
HK$'000
BT T
Net liabilities acquired: Wz B EFE :
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KR 6
Inventories FE 59
Trade and other receivables B 515 2R S E th B AR 3K 1,080
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREFEER 47
Trade and other payables B 511 2R Ko E h JE - BR 3K (1,381)
Amounts due to related companies JE T A B A B 5RIE (3,267)
Net liabilities BEFE (3.456)
50% of net liabilities acquired WHE B EFEZ50% 1,728
Goodwill (note 20) & (fIE52018) (1,728)
Total consideration HRE -
Satisfied by: (=ENIE
Cash Re -
Net cash inflow from acquisition: Wk 2 IREMAFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WiEsReRBeEEER 47
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39.

40.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on January 1,
2009, total Group revenue for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,241,962,000, and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$152,472,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on January 1, 2009, nor
is it intended to be a projection of future results.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year,
the Group entered into the following significant related
party transactions:

39.

40.

WiE—BHELR (&)

RERZ W BE B 7A2009F1 B1H TR » AIA
N AR F U FE A A0S 11,241,962,000
JL v T AF E BB E 4 A7 152,472,000
T REEEAREELERE YT —F
f B 72 R 5% Uk B8 B 722009F 1 B1H ek 2
BRTARBWEGE REE T TRIEAR
REME ZTBR o

BHEBRALTIZEERS

BB mREMB DM RE A LS
SO REBRAFENET I EER
BMALTRS :

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
IT consultancy fee received B — & Ba A T U
from a related party (a) BRI ERE Q) 192 -
Purchase of goods from a director BE—R2EEBEAEYD - 4,680
Sales of goods to related EETHBAL
parties (b), (c), (e) (b) ~ (c) ~ 7,267 -
Acquisition of share capital and WEH-—REEHE 2
shareholder’s loan of —RRARZBRARKBRREER
a company owned by a director - 4,300
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

On January 30, 2009, the independent consultancy
agreement entered into between Auto Italia Limited,
an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Mr.
Michael Adamczyk, the son of Mr. Herbert Adamczyk
who is a director of Auto Italia Limited, in relation
to the provision of professional consulting services
in the area of information technology operation
and organization strategy was renewed for a term
of one year commencing on February 1, 2009 and
terminating on January 31, 2010 at a consultation
fee of USD2,060 per month.

On March 5, 2009, Auto Sportiva Limited ("Auto
Sportiva”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
as seller, and Mr. Michael Adamczyk, the son of Mr.
Herbert Adamczyk who is a director of Auto Sportiva,
as buyer, had entered into a provisional sale and
purchase contract for the sale of a new unit of Fiat
car (Model: 2008 F500 Lounge 1.4 M/T) from Auto
Sportiva for a consideration of HK$139,800.

On September 15, 2009, Noble Brand Investments
Limited ("Noble Brand”), an indirect subsidiary of
the Company, as seller, and Mr. Herbert Adamczyk,
a director of Noble Brand, as buyer, had entered
into a Sales Contract for the sale of a unit of used
1998 Technomarine yacht from Noble Brand for a
consideration of HK$7,000,000.
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40. HEB AT 2T EXRZ (&)

(a)

ARz BENBARREASE
ERARIEREAEARAAES
Herbert Adamczykst 4 2 FMichael
Adamczyke PRI 32 - AAREE
MBI EERBEM R EXEEMN
Bk %% 2 %8 7 B8 R 1 3% 72009F1 A
30 E& —F 0 A2009F2R81H &
2010F1 A3 B& I EAEBAETA
2,060 7T °

720093 A5H « A A A z fH &%
MEBAREBERAEARQAGNE
RAE]  FRER)EAERAE
% ZHEHerbert Adamczykst £ 2 T
Michael Adamczykt £({EA B K )
AIVBREREEHE BERAED
E—®W a2 sFiat/T B (A 5 - 2008
F500 Lounge 1.4 M/T) - REEARBE
139,8007T °

F20096F9 A158 + ANA Rz MK
BRRINREABR 2B (T ARIK]
TERE R )BE NIRIK E EHerbert
AdamczykE £ (1EREF )TV HE
BH - BAITREHE —WEHERAD
1998 Technomarines i - X (B &5
#7,000,0007T °
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Pursuant to a resolution passed by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting of the Company held on August 6, 2009, the
subscription agreement dated July 1, 2009 entered
into between the Company and Dr. Richard Man Fai
LEE, the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, in relation to the subscription
by Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE for up to 50,000,000
new shares of the Company in three tranches of not
less than 15,000,000 new shares each at a price of
HK$0.28 per share, was approved. The subscription
of 50,000,000 new shares of the Company by Dr.
Richard Man Fai LEE was taken place on October
30, 20009.

(e) The pricing of transactions regarding goods sold to
related parties were determined by the Directors on
the basis of estimated market value.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

40. HEABA LT Z2EERF (&)

(d) BIEARREE A ER2009F8H6
BRTZAQRRBEREN RS L@
By —HRBE ARAHEHMITE
FE AT AR T SO £ 720095
TANBRIYEBZ BB TIREIKR
B2 T B ARETIR
15,000,000 $T & & £ & % KR A
50,000,000 % ¥ A% 2 3R 8 5 =& & #t
Ao N ETE £ 7R2009F10830H
ZERR SR HE KA F150,000,000 X HT A% ©

() EETHBMALZRZIHEER

RATMEERE °

or

ERZEEABZHM

AEENEEREMESEEAB L HH
mF :

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Fees we 282 304
Salaries and other benefits HeRHEHMET 7,140 8,207
Performance related incentive payments B ¥ KRIFMAR 2 E4 3,293 8,555
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  RKIEFIEHE| 2 {3 53 62
Short-term employee benefits = EiE B A 10,768 17,128

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management are determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

EZNHMERERABZHFMHFINE
BR@RBEEAZKRALRTNREE -
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41.OPERATING LEASE A REHERH
The Group as lessor AEBAEEA
Property rental income earned, net of outgoings of REEWEHRS WAL R OB
approximately HK$242,000 (2008: HK$647,000) during the 242,0007C 37 H1 (20084 : 7 #647,0007T )
year was approximately HK$495,000 (2008: HK$336,000). B8 E5495,0007T (20084F © & #336,000
The property held has committed tenants for the next To) o MERRR —FEEAERE -
year.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEERAR  REBEBEELN 2 RRE
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum EREENTOT
lease payments which fall due:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year 1F K 226 665
In the second to fifth year inclusive FLEFESF - 185
226 850
The Group as lessee KEBERAEA
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Operating lease rental recognised REEHFREBREROER
in the consolidated income KEHEMES
statement for the year 52,837 42,024
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41. OPERATING LEASE (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:

EERERE(E)

REEBHEBA(E)
RIRER » REBAABUE 2 &EHE
AEDT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Within one year 15X 32,795 53,537
In the second to fifth year inclusive FLEFESF 60,981 78,194
93,776 131,731

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises, retail shops
and warehouse. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average
of one year.

The above lease commitments only include commitments
for basic rentals, and do not include commitments for
additional rental payment (contingent rents), if any,
which are to be determined generally by applying pre-
determined percentages to future sales less of the
respective leases.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had no significant
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
(2008: Nil).

REMENKEAKTERETHIEY
¥ TEEHLERZENEE -HEZ
FHOFHRAMEMESA T —FEE —

Sk
IN

FHAREAREERREAESE - TEEE
N (KAEE) (NE) 2 AHE -
—RIARREERREBRESRIRTESL
REBDHLEE -

2009912 A31H » KA AT EE KN
AIEUH 2 &S T & AYE (20084 : 4E)
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42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. EAREIE
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Capital expenditures in respect of the I R & B IS ek
acquisition of property, plant and TER B 2 B % -
equipment and leasehold improvement B E R &
not provided in the consolidated MEREZ
financial statements: BARZH
— contracted but not provided for — BRI AUME ) R B 828 2,018
Other commitments contracted for HATIEARGE M BRE
but not provided in TERHE 2 254
the consolidated financial M AR
statements in respect of: H A EE
— investment in a subsidiary —R—ERB AR ZERE - 9,750
— investment in a jointly controlled — R — B R
entity BER2RE - 3,000
828 14,768
At December 31, 2009, the Company had no other 72009128318 - A AR EHEME
significant commitments (2008: Nil). KA (20084 © £E) o
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company had the following outstanding contingent
liabilities which are not provided for in the financial
statements in respect of banking facilities and other
facilities made available to subsidiaries:

43. FREE
(a) WIS HIF - AN EE R ARQF K

BEAREDRRITEEREMEEREM
ARPBHRERBRBRZEIABENT ¢

The Group The Company
rEE AAHE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B¥TT BETRT BETR
Guarantees given for BB A A EER
banking facilities made H|ITEE
available to subsidiaries EH R - - 375,628 327,447
Guarantees given for FEFT B A FEE
other facilities made HmEE
available to subsidiaries TEH R - - 25,318 32,626
- - 400,946 360,073

Under a share purchase and subscription agreement
signed on June 30, 2006, a subsidiary of the Company
provided a guarantee amounting to a maximum of
RMB11 million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.5
million as at December 31, 2009) in settlement of
certain liabilities of the disposed entity incurred
prior to disposal. During the year ended December
31, 2008, approximately HK$8,450,000 were paid
under the guarantee and HK$950,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated income statement
of the Group.

BI&E —IB20065F6 H30H Al 32 2 X
NHEERREHRZ Az — M
MiE A RIRHEREZ AR11,000,000
T (FA2009F12 A31 H B E R LB
12,500,0007C ) 2 &R + BAE AT H
ERAREEMELEZETAE -
RE E2008F12A31MB EFE - R
B EIRE X T4 7% %8,450,000
JC 0 178 950,000 2 £ AN &£ E 47
AU RER P IER ©
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W B e R M GE

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE200912A31HIEFE

44.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44 EEIEW
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Deposits in bank |ITEFER 114,565 106,565
Inventories FE 48,440 11,944
Investment properties "EYE 15,060 14,610
Properties held for sale BENEME 21,760 21,150
Property, plant and equipment: M - BE R
Land and buildings T RAEF 1,983 2,035
Motor yacht 1 B 357 A 14,990 15,872
Prepaid lease payments AT EFIE 25,166 25,818
Floating charges on all assets —AMB AR CRBEEEZ
of a subsidiary F B 16,905 18,848
258,869 216,842
The amount represents assets pledged to banks and other SRENDAEBBRGRITEEmMRRITR
licensed financial institutions to secure banking facilities HEFRemgEmEm s EE - x?fﬁﬁ
granted to the Group. The pledged assets will be released BEBMEBRITEREERRER

upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

45. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. EXRE M EE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REEEREER  BERAEEETE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BEREERELEER  RNFEBRE(L
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the B RBRAEARRBBREFRME KRB - K
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's EECBEERKEAF 5 o

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which AEEEAREEOREAGB(BEBER
includes borrowings and obligations under finance leases), MEMHEGES) BehkBE2FEEAMNU
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to RARRRZHEAEREEZ(BEDE
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share TRA - FERRFTERE) -

capital, reserves and accumulated losses.
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EHZE2009612A31AILFE

45. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. EXEREIE(E)

(continued)

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratios at December 31, 2009 and December
31, 2008 were as follows:

BERLER
2009412 A31H K%2008%F12A31H 2 &
B EMT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Debt (note (a)) B8 (M#E(a)) 179,945 190,628

Cash and cash equivalents Re MBS EEIER (151,973) (164,030)

Net debt BIFER 27,972 26,598

Equity (note (b)) Hwm (FEE(b)) 208,698 305,093

Gearing ratio BELX 13.4% 8.72%
Notes: M3T -

(a) Debt comprises long-term and short-term borrowings and
obligations under finance leases as detailed in notes 35
and 34 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

(a) BEEBEERHLCHEELREHNERE
% B RIE N FESEI5R347E -

(b) HWEBREAEEMEEARFEE -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. SE T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €ERMT ED%E
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Financial assets cREE
Fair value through profit or BATFESAER -
loss — Held for trading RAEEER 10 6
Derivative financial instruments MTHEEHBMIA - 98
Loans and receivables (including ERRERER(BIERS
cash and cash equivalents) kBEe%EEER) 376,252 450,133
Available-for-sale financial assets AftEESREE 15,252 21,527
Financial liabilities A=K
Amortised cost 1B 558,324 536,444
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) £REIBEEBEERBE
and policies
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial AEBZEZYFAAEHZERR
risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest Fbe : misAR(BEEERER - F
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity R RAMEERR)  EFRER
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme EnstEbk  ANEE s EEBRR
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets EREHE ™IS 2T A
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on M WHSkEERE A GEH AR E
the Group's financial performance. B RIBER Z TR E -
(i) Market risk (i) THEE

The Group’ s activities expose it primarily AEBZEHETZEH I RE

to the financial risks of changes in foreign . CFERRAERESH 22

exchange rates, interest rates and equity EEk - REEFIZZEITE

prices. The Group enters into a variety of TRITHE  AEBHEMEE 2

derivative financial instruments to manage its SN R - BB

exposure to foreign currency risks, including:

e forward foreign exchange contracts are o BLRRT]BEE A 2 HNETE HS
entered into in respect of highly probable HEMI LRBINES
foreign currency forecast sales to limit its A AREAREEREY
exposure to exchange rate risk in relation AN REMLEBIE
to foreign currency denominated monetary BZEXRRE -

items.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

Market risk exposures are measured using
sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are

46. R T A (&)

(b) 2REMREEBZRBE(E)

(i)

TS AR ()
B L 4 2 45 L e T 8
AT E -

AEEEH 2mHERRIA
SEEENFERRZT AL

S RRER

AN £% B BT B 8B 2 B DA SIS o
THEMRE EAXERY
SNERR - BEREERMEY
ZHOERR  TEREFTER
EREPERZINERRE -

REBNRZHRBHPUINE BB
UZzEEEEREEEEZE
HEMWT

as follows:

Liabilities Assets

=R BE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BETT BT T
usD =7 30,488 4,761 21,277 8,707
RMB AR 59,297 47,971 102,542 26,829
EUR BT 59,479 1,717 2,090 3,362
JPY BIE 122 19,849 6 -
SGD $hnig 10,436 2,432 33,169 2,624
MYD B 9,248 301 16,794 4,195
GBP HigE 77 6 17 21
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in USD, RMB, EUR, JPY, SGD, MYD
and GBP.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in the Hong
Kong dollars against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
foreign currency forward contracts, and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans
to foreign operations within the Group where
the denomination of the loan is in a currency
other than the currency of the lender or the
borrower. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit and other equity where
the Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% against
the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of
the Hong Kong dollars against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and other equity, and the
balances below would be negative.
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46. £ T A (&)

(b) EREREREEERBEEK(E)

(i)

w5 E R ()

S EkeEE ()

HRE DT
AEEBXTZ2EHEET AR
WoBoT BT k-
SELREERPTE -

TERHAINHABASEHR BT
SERINEER ETIRES%L
BRE - 5% BRI AR EEETIE
A B [ S5 2\ B P A 2 R
O WHEEEHEXRARES
BEHFE - BREDTE
BAINEAEZRATRER
HB YR ARFEBEBEN
[ BRPE R 75%% &) o SR E
DMBERYIERARTAE
BARAZIBEXEBZER  ME
RZEERETXET ZEH
o THEBRTAETLAH
SIS IR B T 9R5% - AEA
M EEMERIE M HETH
H B S 3R B TR 985% A
SHAMNEEMERERBS
KRRz E W FIEHE
EGEES
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46.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@ T R (%)

(b) 2REMREEBZERBE(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

(i) Market risk (continued) (i) TmEEE(E)
Foreign currency risk management (continued) SMERRER ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BURE DT (&)
Impact of USD Impact of RMB
EY A4 ARBZEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT A¥TT BYETx BETx
Profit or loss (note) & F /& E (M) 461 197 2,162 1,057

Impact of EUR Impact of JPY

BrT2z¥® HEzSE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T BT T
Profit or loss (note)  Z Ak E548 (MfsE) 2,869 82 6 992

Impact of SGD Impact of MYD

iR ge = -2
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BE¥ET BETR BT T
Profit or loss (note) & A &8 (KfsE) 1,137 10 377 195

Impact of GBP

WEoHE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit or loss (note) B FlskE 8 (F5F) 3 1

Note: BT -

TERENBRERRTUBEEE
REBEMZ ERREMNEFTDAEY
Z Rk e

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on receivables and payables denominated in respective
currencies at the end of the reporting period.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@ T A (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk management

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate borrowings (Note 35).
It is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings
at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease in HIBOR is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
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(b) EREREREEERBEEK(E)

(i) WmHmEE(E)

NEERER
AEEzZRERMNERARE
Y SEEABHEES
H)  ARBRBRREREERS
RFBHE - LRERERF
BEMERRE -

AEEREREERTRAR
i 2 A R & B 1 AN B A A
(RBEcRARBRERE |- &5
e AEE 2R E RN EE R
TEETEAKBEUBTRE
MmEEMELZBBRITRE
ERBZREER -

HRE DT

AT HERED T RIERHE
HRZIUTETAERETETAR
ZHMERBRMETE - 5LFEME
BEME AW NDEKREME
HARDAREEZABESERNE
EEREDTIEEE - B RAI
TEZEBEABERNEMER
B DEAEBRTEERE
&N EOR, S0ME AR WHEE
BEHNXAEGEZ ¥
fi e
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year ended
December 31, 2009 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$90,000 (2008: HK$95,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
borrowings.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has
decreased during the current period mainly due
to the reduction in variable rate borrowings.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities operating in logistics, manufacturing
and trading sectors quoted in the Stock Exchange.
In addition, the Group has monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

46. BT A (%)
(b) ©REREE B ZERBEK (&)

(i) mEEEE (&)

FEREMEEE(E)
HEE ST ()

fis) FI 2= 38 b0k 501 E 2
METAEEMmEHEFTE - 8l
N EE RN E £2009F12831H
tFEEZEBEGR D M
#9 75 #90,0007C (20084F : B ¥
95,0000 ) * FEMH RN A& EH
FrEYEZEEEZFERRM
@( o

AEBER AR SR K 2§
BRETR TEHRFEREE
B PR

HitEH%ER

AEEBEBR ETRARBSZ
REMEERAERRER - &
BEZBERATRERKXE
HemBEHEMEEZER -
AEBZBRAERAREZSE
TREBRXMBEZLEYE
BENEHTERANKRAE
ot AEBEDERER
B TEREFERERY
B BRR -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

Other price risks (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, the
Group's net loss for the year ended December 31,
2009 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$500 (2008: increase/decrease by HK$500).
This is mainly due to the changes in fair value
of other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group's sensitivity to equity prices has not
changed significantly from prior year.

(ii) Credit risk
As at December 31, 2009, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group
is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to the financial guarantees provided
by the Group as disclosed in note 43.

166 WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED sty () A R4 W

46. £ T A (&)

(b) EREREREEERBEEK(E)

(i)

(ii)

w5 E R ()
HE% R ()

AT SURE 1 T5 IR IR 10 2
B P E S 2 IRAB AR E R M
BE -

fis B AS (B A& 35 hn 8k 5% » 8l
A= E R E =20099F12831H
ItFEZEBEEZIEN R
49 7% #5007T (20084F ¢ 12 1,
BB ES00T) 0 EE RN
ANFEFAEZ 2 HEHMERME
EZATFEEFMEY -

AEBHRBEAER ZHRE
HEFELERYEERNEH -

=EER

2009412 A31H © K& B &
RXEEFREBITEEER
SEREFBERMEEHA
SERBYBELACEREER
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46.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@ T R (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

(ii) Credit risk (continued)
In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt and debt investments
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers, spread across diverse
industries and geographical areas.

(b) £REBEEBERBUER (&)

(i) EEmEE (&)

RTBEREEERR K&
BEEEEZREEKM: &
EETFEERE FEEHR
Hh B ERF - RR IR
ETE AW E A BEE- U
S REBRE®RE B HRY
B BEREENEZERRER
BEMAWE S AR
TREW B S EIEH T R BEE
Be U TH NARESER
AAEBENEERRDC ARE
1K e

MR R 58 F 2R BT R#E
BETEEEEFRZRT
AR EezEERRA
R e

BRBESZEERRETR
FHEESEGEFNRZHE
RITOEFN AEEYEH
MEANEEEPZRAR - B

ERERERSIRARERTR
MEEFEMZETERBED

35 o
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46.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. £® T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

As at December 31, 2009, the Group has available
unutilised overdrafts and short and medium
term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$10,379,000 (2008: HK$13,000,000) and
HK$118,001,000 (2008: HK$77,000,000)
respectively.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
which are included in the maturity analysis
provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity
risk. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the
tables reflect the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows.

For derivative instruments settle on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash outflows are presented.
Whereas they require gross settlement, the
undiscounted gross outflows on these derivatives
are shown in the table.
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(b) EREREREEERBEK(E)

(iii) B EL R EE

RBETRBERZZRREML
HEFEAE MEFECER
VABZRBETEREER
B UABEAKEZES  +
HEEHBERRDESER
FE-AEEEEERTRRM
B ROEERRERERE
mMEBRRBDESRER  HAE
FEEERARERRERE
UEZHeREERERAE
ZEHAFIES °

2009412 831H © & £
BAREE 2B NG 8
RITIEE D BI4%5%10,379,000
7L (20084 : & %13,000,0007T )
K 75 #118,001,0007C (20084 -
177,000,000 ) °

TERHANAEEERAEZH
TANIMBR  ZFREXD
FIARMARBEZEREABRHE
FEERDESABRARZE
MBS - LT ESRE
EME ZFMERRRREAR
SEREBRERZKEBHM
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MERBEMNERAEZRER

=
g °
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46.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46.£®lT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) R EMEEEERNE(E)
and policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (continued) (iii) RBELEREE (&)
At December 31, 2009 2009 12H31H
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest undiscounted Total
rate Within 2to Over  cash flows carrying

mE¥H 1 year 5 years Syears FIEES amount
BRAIE 15/ 1855 SENE REAE  REAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  E¥Tn  B%Tn  BETn BETR

Non-derivative FOrE

financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other BHERRHEAM

payables ERER - (345,340 - - (345,340) (345,340)
Bills payables ENEE - (32,080) - - (32,080) (32,080)
Obligation under HEHERHK

finance leases 5.06 (88) (308) - (396) (396)
Amounts due to JE(TEB AR

related companies B - (959) - - (959) (959)
Borrowings L& 5.95 (145,384) (18,783) (15,382) (179,549) (179,549)

(523,851) (19,091) (15,382) (558,324) (558,324)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@ T A (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) eREMREEEEREE(E)
and policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (continued) (iii) REBELEREE (&)
At December 31, 2008 722008512 A31H
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest undiscounted Total
rate Within 2to Over  cash flows carrying
MmETH 1 year 5 years Syears FFEEE amount

LGS 15/ 1555 SERE REZE  KERE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTr  E%Tn  A%Tn E%Tn ARTx

Non-derivative FiTHE

financial liabilities cREE
Trade and other ESHREEM

payables RN - (330,489) - - (330,489) (330,489)
Bills payables EREE - (14,383) - - (14,383) (14,383)
Amounts due to fErEE AT

related companies F3E - (944) - - (944) (944)
Borrowings B 5.60 (152,919) (17,562) (20,147)  (190,628)  (190,628)

(498,735) (17,562) (20,147) (536,444) (536,444)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) eI EZAFE

The fair value of financial assets and financial CREERCHBEBECLATENIE

liabilities are determined as follows: AR ARERE -

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial (i) EZEEEREAEEH I EERR
liabilities (including derivative instruments) BmMBEEreMEE R
with standard terms and conditions and traded BEBEETETIR)ZAYE
on active liquid markets are determined with TAR2EMSHHRcEAE
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask LEHEmMESE &

prices respectively; and
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

(continued)

(ii) the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions
as input. For an option-based derivative, the fair
value is estimated using option pricing model
(for example, the Black-Scholes option pricing
model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

46. BT A (%)

(c) EMTAZ N FEGE)

(i)

EHemEERERBE(RR
TETR)ZAFEIRE R
R EBRN - ERFRE
EREDMMETE - WEMK
BABRREMSERXH ZER
HMEERBARE - BLAE
ERRESERZOTET AM
5 RAFENERETARE
EEEA(PIA N5 o &F @
BRI EERN) MAEE -

EERAGANBREMEHZE
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HZE200912A31HIEFE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@ T A (%)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) ERMITEZAFE(E)
(continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in REEHBENRRIBRPERZZ L F
the consolidated statement of financial B2 (E)
position (continued)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1EBR E-py=E E3I/R st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT ARt BT ABETRT

Financial assets EWMEE
Other financial assets at fair ~ E M AR F(E
value through profit or loss T AEZHH

TREE 10 - - 10

Available-for-sale financial H®#tHE>
assets EWMEE

Unlisted equity securities EREZ

&N E - - 15,000 15,000
Total A&t 10 - 15,000 15,010
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in RAFETEFIBREFEIBER 2
the current year. 28 -
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FBIERETHEELFEITEZHEK

measurements of financial assets
Unquoted equity

investments

BEEZREARE

HK$'000

BT T

Opening balance FOER 21,000
Gains or losses recognised in: RTHIEE PR EE

— profit or loss — 8 (6,000)

Closing balance FIAEER 15,000
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47.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME 47 . BB RETTE

2002 Scheme

On August 23, 2001, the Stock Exchange has announced
amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, which has
come into effect on September 1, 2001. In compliance with
the amendments to the Listing Rules and the announcement
of the Stock Exchange, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (“2002 Scheme”) and terminated the
2001 Scheme on May 30, 2002 pursuant to a resolution
passed on that date. The purpose of the 2002 Scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to participants for
their contribution to the Group and enable the Group
to recruit and retain high calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
companies in which the Group holds any equity interest.
The 2002 Scheme will expire on the 10th anniversary of
date of adoption.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may at their discretion grant options to the
following participants of the Company, its subsidiaries
and any companies in which the Group holds any equity
interest to subscribe for shares in the Company:

1. eligible employees, including Directors; or
2. suppliers or customers; or

3. any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support; or

4. shareholders; or

5. employees, partners or Directors of any business
partners, joint venture partners, financial advisers
and legal advisers.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates must be approved by the INEDs of the Company
(excluding any INED who is the grantee).

2002F 5 &

720018 H23H » Bt FTEMIERI £
B E175 I HR2001F9 51 H # £ -
AEFAELETRABITIEBIM 2 AMHA
A ARRAF2002F5 4308 AN S —F
BRI E([20025 5128 |) MR &
Rz A BB RERKIE2001F 58] -
2002 FHEI EESEE X ZREANEB B
FEIZ2EA  ARFEAEETRERER
BeeH v BT URSIZEEZ A AAE
BRAEBEFEEARNDER ZERAF
TEHE B - 2002F 518115 B 549 B HifE AT
F10RFE /M °

RIZ20025 518 ARAREEFSAMIE
REMEARRE - ENE AR RAEER
EEABRDER2EMNARBBEZIATS
HBALETERTRBE - URBBARRFK

5
1. AARER BEEF: %
2 BREERES %

3. REHR - BRERIAEMEMZEZ
EMALHAR K

4. R =X

5. TAEHBEBA BELEAE
A MHERRAERBER 2R
B -ABASEE-

BROHELARBETARRNES - TEMTH
ABHTERRIWERTAZHEAL
LEEARRBYLFATES(TEHER
FRAERRAZERBYIFRATES)H
fE o
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47.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 47.EB%XRRESTEI(E)

2002 Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other
schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. Subject
to the above rule, the total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme
and any other schemes must not in aggregate, exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
adoption date of the 2002 Scheme without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the Company’s shareholder at the
special general meeting held on April 30, 2008, the
scheme limit of the 2002 Scheme was refreshed so that
the total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at April 30, 2008. Options
granted prior to April 30, 2008 under the 2002 Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company were
not counted for the purpose of calculating the refreshed
scheme limit of the 2002 scheme.

The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any participant in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point of time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder, or an INED of the Company or any of their
respective associates under the 2002 Scheme and any
other schemes in any one year in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's issued share capital or with a value, based
on the closing price of the shares of the Company at the
date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the
date of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of
options. The exercise period of the share options granted
under the 2002 Scheme shall be determined by the Board
of Directors when such options are granted, provided that
such period shall not end later than 6 years from the date
of grant. The subscription price is determined by the Board
of Directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the Company's shares on the
date of grant or the average closing price of the shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant, or the nominal value of a share of the Company.
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For the year ended December 31, 2009

HZE2009F12 831 HILEE

47.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

2002 Scheme (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the numbers of
share options granted and exercised were 23,100,000
and 6,098,000 respectively (2008: nil).

At December 31, 2009, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2002 Scheme was 24,538,000 (2008: 11,088,000*)
representing 5.45% (2008: 3.77%) of the issued share
capital of the Company at that date.

The fair value of the options granted in 2007 and 2009
measured as at the date of grant on June 11,2007,
August 9, 2007, September 25, 2007, June 12, 2009 and
November 11, 2009 were approximately HK$172,000,
HK$322,000, HK$1,659,000, HK$1,493,000 and HK$178,000
respectively and it had been expensed as share-based
payments during 2007 and 2009. Options were priced
using the Binomial or Black-Scholes models. The following
significant assumptions were used to derive the fair value
using the Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing models

at the dates of grant:

47. BRRBRET & (&)

2002F 5 &I (&)
HE20FNANBIEFERARE L E
T2 BAERBEEE 55 /423,100,000
19 %26,098,00015 (20084 : 4&) o

200912 A31H @ B R IE20024 51 &
ROERRITEZEBLERBRIEZRNOEE
/%24,538,000% (20084F : 11,088,000/%*) -
AR FE B2 BB 25.45% (2008
F:3.77%) °

» R B 5200746 A11H « 200748 A
9H - 200749 A25H8 - 200946 A12H
}2009%11 A118 5t & 220074 %2009
FEERHELRRENAFES LD
A 8 #172,0000T ~ B #322,0000T B
#1,659,0007C + & #51,493,0007T M 78 ¥
178,0007T * 1M 7% 5 € %8 B R2007F &
2009F FAFEUARRMD AERS R ZH
o BERKRENFEA -_BEAXMANT o
FHERATE - U NARRHAHER
“BEAFMANTE e TRMELRBRETE
BAFERATFEMBZEARK

June 11, August 9, September 25, June 12, November 11,

2007 2007 2007 2009 2009

Date of share options granted 20075 2007% 2007% 2009% 2009%
REBEARERH 6A118 8A9A 98250 68128 1MA11A
Granted date share price (HKS) KRSz ROEBR(EET) 080 1.23 0.97 0.295 0.78
Exercise price (HKS) TEEEST) 1.00 1.278 1.044 0.295 0.78
Expected volatility (%) TEERIE (%) 83.12 102.30 113.75 111.88 107.30
Contractual option life (years) BHNEBERREFH(F) 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Dividend yield (%) REE(%) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) BRI E (%) 4.088 3.920 3.791 2.493 1.842

Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions (including
the probability of meeting market conditions attached to
the option), and behavioural considerations. The expected
volatility is based on the historical share price volatility.

In 2009, the weighted average share price at the share
price at the date of exercise price for share options
exercised during the year was HK$0.739.

HERBAT  ERBEEREZ&EMGG
MmAEABRZREAERZERFY - ARBR
THEE  TERH(BHEINELRK
REPTM M IS IR ROA BEE) RTTRE B R
RZRE - RERE D ERE L R(E RS

F20094F - 1T EARBREZ A ZREZ
INEEFEHRRE A E0.7397T °
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47.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 47.EB%XRRESTEI(E)

2002 Scheme (continued) 2002 F 5T &I(E&)
The options outstanding at December 31, 2009 had 200912 A31 8 M ARITHFEE LB
the weighted average exercise price of HK$0.75 (2008: ZMEFHITHEE RE0.7570 (20084 :
HK$1.08) and weighted average remaining contractual EH1.087T) - MANETF AR T & L FH
life of 4.53 years (2008: 4.70 years). 4,53 (20084 : 4.70%F ) ©
The following table discloses details of the Company's TREBAAFAEE(BEESF)RFA
share options held by employees (including Directors) and BB ARREUNRZERREES 25F
movements in such holdings during the year: 15 -
2009
Outstanding at Outstanding at
January 1, December 31, Exercise
2009 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2009 price*
Date of R2009%  during the  during the  during the R2009E Exercisable k@
Scheme type grant 1A18 year year year 128318 period HKS
TEER RLAH HATR  FARY  ERAR EREN ERid s BET
2002 June 11,2007 840,000 - - (180,000) 660,000 June 11,2007 - 0.8333
200767118 June 10, 2013
200756 ANNBE
201356 /108
2002 August 9, 2007 720,000 - - (96,000) 624,000 August 9, 2007 - 1.0650
20078 A9H August 8, 2013
2007F8R9HE
2013F8A8H
2002 September 25, 2007 9,528,000 - (28,000) (2,436,000) 7,064,000 September 25, 2007 - 0.8700
2007594250 September 24, 2013
2007F9A25H2
201359248
2002 June 12, 2009 - 22,100,000  (6,070,000) (340,000) 15,190,000 June 12,2009 - 0.2950
2009%6A12H June 11, 2015
2009F67128E
2015564118
2002 November 11, 2009 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 November 11, 2009 - 0.7800
200911 A11A November 10, 2015
009511 ANEE
2015118108
Grand total 11,088,000 23,100,000  (6,098,000) (3,552,000 24,538,000
@t
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47.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

2002 Scheme (continued)

2008

47. BRRBRET & (&)

20025 & (/&)

Exercise price

Outstanding at Outstanding at e
January 1, Adjustment  December 31, Before After
2008 Lapsed  during the 2008 adjustment  adjustment*
Date of #2008 during year* R2008E Exercisable BEd RSN
Scheme type grant 1B18  the year R 128318 period HKS HKS
it 88 RABH HATE  FRAR MBE HRTE i BEL AR
2002 June 4, 2002 4,053,730 (4,864,471 810,741 - June 4, 2002 - 1.0000¢ 0.8333
20026 44A June 3, 2008
2002567402
20085643 H
2002 September 24, 2002 2,424,136°  (2,908,961) 484,825 - September 24, 2002- 1.0000¢ 0.8333
2002469R24R September 23, 2008
200069R240 %
2008F9F 238
2002 June 11,2007 700,000 - 140,000 840,000 June 11, 2007 - 1.0000 0.8333
2007568118 June 10, 2013
00156A1EE
2013564108
2002 August 9, 2007 680,000 (96,000) 136,000 720,000 August 9,2007 - 1.2780 1.0650
200748 49A August 8, 2013
200758A9HE
201358 A8H
2002 September 25, 2007 8,540,000 (720,000) 1,708,000 9,528,000 September 25, 2007 - 1.0440 0.8700
20074594250 September 24, 2013
200159A25H %
2013595248
Grand total: 16,397,866 (8,589,432) 3,279,566 11,088,000
CHE
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47.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 47.EB%XRRESTEI(E)

2002 Scheme (continued) 2002 F 5T &I(E&)
Details of the share options held by the Directors included FRAHEBEEFHRECBAERREFEFN
in the above table are as follows: K
2009
Outstanding at Outstanding at
January 1, December 31, Exercise
2009 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2009 price*
Date of R2009%  during the  during the  during the R2009E Exercisable fiRE*
Scheme type grant 1A1A year year year 128318 period HKS
it 8 RHEH WAGTE FARE  FRAE ER%H WRTE s BB
2002 June 11, 2007 600,000 - - (60,000) 540,000 June 11, 2007 - 0.8333
2007F6F118 June 10, 2013
001F6A1BE
201356 /108
2002 September 25, 2007 5,244,000 - - (1,044,000) 4,200,000 September 25, 2007 - 0.8700
200769A250 September 24, 2013
2007F9A25HE
01359/ 248
2002 June 12, 2009 - 12,200,000 - - 12,200,000 June 12,2009 - 0.2950
2009%6412H June 11, 2015
200956 A28 %
2015567118
2002 November 11, 2009 - 500,000 - - 500,000 November 11, 2009 - 0.7800
200911 A1E November 10, 2015
009511 ANEE
2015F11 4108
Grand total 5,844,000 12,700,000 - (1,104,000 17,440,000
@it
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47.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 47.B%&RKREREI(E)

2002 Scheme (continued) 2002F 5 &I (&)
2008
Exercise price
Outstanding at Outstanding at i®
January 1, Adjustment  December 31, Before After
2008 Lapsed  during the 2008 adjustment  adjustment*
Date of  M2008E during year* R2008E Exercisable BE BEE
Scheme type grant 1A1B  the year R 12A318 period HKS$ HKS$
AR RHAH HATHE  FRAM HEFY BRI figid BT BET
2002 June 4, 2002 534,872 (641,846) 106,974 - June 4, 2002 - 1.0000¢ 0.8333
2002F6A4H June 3, 2008
W0EC6A4RE
2008F6A3H
2002 September 24, 2002 2,360,072 (2,832,085) 472,013 - September 24, 2002- 1.0000¢ 0.8333
2002F9H 248 September 23, 2008
2000F9A24R%
2008F9F 238
2002 June 11, 2007 500,000 - 100,000 600,000 June 11, 2007 - 1.0000 0.8333
200756 A11E June 10, 2013
007F6A11HE
2013F6F108
2002 September 25, 2007 4,370,000 - 874,000 5,244,000 September 25, 2007 - 1.0440 0.8700
2007594258 September 24, 2013
007F9ABHEE
013F9AUE
Grand total: 7,764,944 (3,473,931) 1,552,987 5,844,000
5t
#  After adjustment for the share consolidation in June # 4B FE2006F6 AT 2R A DHEL A
2006. o
After adjustment for the bonus share issue in May 2008. * B R2008F5 AT 2 AR EITIEL
o
48.DIVIDEND 48. & B
No dividend was paid or proposed for 2008 and 2009, 7220084 [ 20094 #} £ {E fa] )k B =k Ik
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the B S - B WS BRI A (] #E) 2B AR

reporting period. B
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49. TEME AT
AR EEMBARZHBEMNT

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:
Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid

incorporation/
registration

attributable
to the Group

share capital or
registered capital

Name of subsidiaries Bt %, AEEELEZ BRETR&R Principal activities
o) PR oF 3t B REBDL IR AR 2 R TEXK
Direct Subsidiary
EENEAR
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.) British Virgin 100.0 30,000 shares of Investment holding
Limited Islands US$0.01 each REER
RERAES BREEET.01Z
A& 1730,0008%
Indirect Subsidiaries
RN A
Auto Italia Limited Hong Kong 70.5 10,000 shares of Trading of cars and
RERERRADA N HK$10 each related accessories and
ShEEEE10TL provision of car
f%1510,0000% repairing services
BEAEREARMR
REAEEERS
Binda WKH Hong Kong 100.0 1 share of HK$1 each Distribution and retail
(Greater China) Limited EF FREEREITLZ of fashion accessories
RERARRLA AR 1 A DERTERHAH
Dalian Auto Italia Car PRC 70.5 Registered and Trading of cars
Trading Co., Ltd. H fully paid capital of ~ (SHEIHE
REBERBAEES RMB5,000,000
BRARA AMREHRER
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49.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 49.XEME R T (&)
Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid

incorporation/
registration

attributable
to the Group

share capital or
registered capital

Name of subsidiaries B2, rEEELz BREIRSBE Principal activities
WEARER o i 3t B REBDL B 2 IR #E TEEH
Indirect Subsidiaries (continued)
EENEAR(F)
Italian Motors (Sales Hong Kong 70.5 60,000 shares of Investment holding
& Service) Limited o HK$10 each REER
B EERAA BREEEBI0TZ
1% 1760,0004%
Noble Brand Investments Hong Kong 90.0 1 share of HK$1 each Trading of yachts and
Limited 0 SREEEBITL accessories
NRIEAFRA A R A7 1% BEMRRE Y
Technorient Limited Hong Kong 70.5 461,687 shares of Investment holding
B2 ER AR N6 HK$100 each RERR
BREEEEI0TZ
17 461,687
Turbo Fast Limited Hong Kong 100.0 1 share of HK$1 each Distribution and retail
R R AR QA N ShEEESITZ of fashion apparel
R 19 188 DERTERE
Wo Kee Administration Hong Kong 100.0 1 share of HK$1 each Treasury and
Limited 0 BREEEBITZ administration
M ERARAA R0 1% EBRITHER
Wo Kee Hong Distribution Singapore 100.0 4,500,000 ordinary Distribution of home
Pte Ltd GBI shares of $$1 each audio and car audio

SREGENMEEIT equipment and
E3Elidn accessories
4,500,000 % AHERARTETE
BV REH
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49.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable
to the Group

Issued and

fully paid

share capital or
registered capital

49. T BB AR (&)

Name of subsidiaries Rt rEEELEZ CBETRER Principal activities
o) PR aE fif it B REBDL RA& 2R E FEXEK
Indirect Subsidiaries (continued)
EERELE(H)
Wo Kee Hong Electronics Malaysia 100.0 1,000,000 ordinary Distribution of audio-
Sdn Bhd BRED shares of RM$1 each equipment
BREES®BITZ DEFERE
3B 171,000,000/
Wo Kee Hong Finance Hong Kong 100.0 2 shares of HK$1 each Finance and money
Limited N BREGBAESIT lending
ML EXTBAERAA ZRBtn 2k BBEREE
Wo Kee Hong Limited Hong Kong 100.0 10,000 non-voting Distribution of
NMAEXARDA N deferred shares of air-conditioning products,
HK$1,000 each and audio-visual equipment,
2 ordinary shares of car audio and other
HK$1,000 each electrical appliances
BREEA®1,000T SETHAER TE
ZERFRELTR ) ®f - REEER
10,000/ & & E{E H At B 28
BH1,0007T2
TR 2R
Wo Kee Hong Marketing Singapore 94.8 6,200,000 shares of Distribution of
Pte Ltd CARIIEE S$1 each air-conditioning
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49.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 49.XZEKE N7 (&)

Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid
incorporation/ attributable share capital or
registration to the Group registered capital
Name of subsidiaries Lt 2, FEEELEZ BEREIRSRE Principal activities
MEARER o i 3t B REFEDL B B A TEEH
Indirect Subsidiaries (continued)
EENELR(H)
Wo Kee Hong Trading Malaysia 100.0 5,100,000 ordinary Distribution of audio-
Sdn Bhd BRADR shares of RM$1 each visual equipment
BREEE®KITZ DT ERE
£ 3® A% 175,100,0008%
LS R PRC 60.0 Registered and fully paid Distribution and retail
LN F & capital of US$3,000,000 of fashion apparels
RIS ARE- ¢ NERTEREK
B7R%73,000,000
FHaRE(LS) PRC 60.0 Registered and fully paid Distribution of fashion
E5ER AT R capital of US$2,000,000 apparels
ke g N IR
BR%72,000,000
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities FRABEMRBARBITEMERES -
at the end of the year.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company BEERE LRAFIWEAEEXEEKE
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect EBEEXE2ARTIMBAT - #3|
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other HMWBARFE EFMRAMEAZ
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result RIEHEB/NITR °

in particulars of excessive length.
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50. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 50. T EHE QT
Particulars of the Group's principal associates are as REFEZEZHERNRFIBOT
follows:
Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid
incorporation/ attributable share capital or
registration to the Group  registered capital
Name of associates BRI i B/ rEEELEZ BETRAR Principal activities
BENRER A {3t B REBD L i A% = 1A At A TEEK
China Premium Lifestyle USA 39.8 29,104,110 shares Investment holding
Enterprise, Inc. e of common stock KEER

of US$0.005 each

and 247,798 shares

of preferred stock

of US$0.001 each
FREEZET0.0052

T 3FA29,104,1100% I

BREERT0.0012

BERR247,798%

CPMM (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 39.8 300,000 ordinary Distribution and retail
(M) ERAR N shares of HK$1 each of fashion apparels
ShEBEEBITZ and accessories

LAEMR300,00088  DERTERELEH
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EHZE2009612A31AILFE

51.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

In addition to events disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following events after the
reporting period:

(a)

On January 25,2010, Trendy Move International Limited
(“Trendy Move"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a share subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”) with Binda S.p.A.
(“Binda"), an Italian fashion accessories distributor,
pursuant to which Binda agreed to subscribe for new
shares in Binda WKH. The Subscription Agreement
was completed on February 1, 2010 and Binda WKH
is owned as to 50% by Trendy Move and as to
50% by Binda. For more details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated January 25, 2010.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held
on February 12, 2010, each of the existing issued
and unissued shares of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company was subdivided into 5
new ordinary shares (the “Subdivided Shares”) of
HK$0.02 each (the “Share Subdivision”). With the
Share Subdivision became effective on February 17,
2010, the Subdivided Shares are traded in board
lots of 12,500 Subdivided Shares. For more details,
please refer to the Company's announcement dated
February 12, 2010.

51. REHBMREE

BT MR mE TN E 2 SR

R & H

Eig  AEBEFLENTEIR

(a)

MR2010F1 8258 ARFRIzZE2EM
BARMREERAERAR KD
81 — A} B KN B & B & 2> 35 P9 Binda
S.p.A. ([ Binda]) 8T 32 — 5 IRt REE
% B BindaR BRERSE R
it o REWEN201062/81H
K E - = E XK AR EBindan
BIERS0%EZ - BAFEH2HA
NAA2010F1 2588 H 2 A% -

BIEARRNE AR ER201092 4128 £
TZBRRFNARE F@Br —ER
BERARABRATRZREESE
010t 2R BEBITRAREITRMHIF
41 ASRE ([ HFRAR D ) B R mES
0.027cZF LA ([ARMHIFM]) o BX
AR E R R20108E2 B178 % - #F
AR A B = B AL S F 12,5008 47 40
BRHOETES - EHFBERL2HEA
NEIR2010F2 4128 H 2 A% -
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP PROPERTIES

EURE S

For the year ended December 31, 2009
HZE2009F12A31HIEFE

(A)INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Address
i B

Units A, B and C on level 24,
New Times Plaza,

No. 42 Wenwu Lu,
Xinhua Da Dao,
Qingyang District,
Chengdu,

the PRC

FEIP)IE
RETEFE

HEE R E SO R 4255
R ES

24[ZA - BRCEAL

Flats A-H, J, K, L-N, P-R and T,
7th Floor, Block A,

Walton Heights,

Cafu Plaza,

No. 5 Gui Hua Road,

Futian District,

Shenzhen, PRC

A BRI 4B B AR B[R EETE R 59
NAEE S ER BT ELARE

7/EA-H ) K- LN P-RETE

(B) PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Units 1912,

1915-1918 on Level 19,

Bright China Chang An Building,
No. 7 Jianguomennei Da lJie,
Dongcheng District,

Beijing, the PRC
B4 R R R
EEIPTA R ET79R
RERLZARNEFI19E

1912 % 191551918 i,

Existing use

REAR

Commercial

[EES

Residential

x=

Commercial

EES
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(A) BEWMRE

Category
of lease

Skl

Medium-term lease

4

Medium-term lease

]

(B) HIFHLEW=

Medium-term lease

A

Percentage held
by the Group
rEERER
Bk

100%

100%

100%



SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
1 Jo R e BE A K

The following table discloses movement in the Company's  TRIEFEARD A2 ELRIREN2009F12 A31

share options for the year ended December 31, 2009: HIEFEZEZEHBER
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
January 1, December 31, Exercise
2009 Grant Lapsed 2009 Price
R2009%  during the during the  R2009% ke
Eligible Person Scheme Type  Date of Grant 1A1A Year Year 128318 Exercisable period HKS
RERAL HHEN REBH HAGE  FARY  ERXX AR RS BT
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE 2002 June 11, 2007 264,000 - - 264,000 June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 0.8333
(D/Ie[rolj 200756 A11A 200756 A11BZ2013%56 4108
EYEEL
(£%) 2002 June 12, 2009 - 2,900,000 - 2,900,000 June 12, 2009 - June 11, 2015 0.2950
2009564128 200964128 2201556 4118
264,000 2,900,000 - 3,164,000
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE 2002 June 11, 2007 120,000 - - 120,000 June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 0.8333
(Director) 001E6AN1A 200756 A1 B 201356108
LR
(%) 2002 September 25, 2007 144,000 - - 144,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 0.8700
2001%59A258 200789258 E2013F9F24A
2002 June 12, 2009 - 2,900,000 - 2,900,000 June 12, 2009 - June 11, 2015 0.2950
2009F6A128 200964126 2201556 1A
264,000 2,900,000 - 3,164,000
Mr. Tik Tung WONG 2002 September 25, 2007 3,480,000 - - 3,480,000  September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 0.8700
(Director) 200159A258 200759258 E201359F 24
IRRTE
(%) 2002 June 12, 2009 - 2,900,000 - 2,900,000 June 12,2009 - June 11, 2015 0.2950
200964128 2009%6 3126 E2015%6F 118
3,480,000 2,900,000 - 6,380,000
Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI 2002 September 25, 2007 840,000 - (840,000) - September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 0.8700
(Director) (Note 1) 200159A258 00159A25RE201359A14A
SRR E
(2%)(Hz208)
Mr. Boon Seng TAN 2002 September 25, 2007 204,000 - - 204,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24,2013 0.8700
(Director) 200159A25A 200759A25HE201359A14A
RXEEE
(%) 2002 June 12, 2009 - 300,000 - 300,000 June 12, 2009 - June 11, 2015 0.2950
2009564128 200964128 £2015%6 A11A
204000 300,000 - 504,000
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
& Jo wd W & R

Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
January 1, December 31, Exercise
2009 Grant Lapsed 2009 Price
2009  during the during the  R2009% kg
Eligible Person Scheme Type  Date of Grant 1A1R Year Year 128318 Exercisable period HKS
AERAL itEEN  RHEE HAGE  FARY  ERAR HAGE GRS B
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE 2002 June 11, 2007 60,000 - (60,000) - June 11,2007 - June 10, 2013 08333
(Director) (Note 2) 2007%6A118 20076 1182013565108
ZEREE
(EZ)(W218) 2002 September 25, 2007 204,000 - (204,000 - September 25, 2007 - September 24,2013 0.8700
2007495258 007695258 2201359548
264,000 - (264,000 -
M. Ying Kwan CHEUNG 2002 June 11, 2007 60,000 - - 60,000 June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 08333
(Director) 00765118 20076 A11BZ2013565108
REmLE
(E%) 2002 September 25, 2007 204,000 - - 204,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 0.8700
007595258 2007F9F258 2201359548
2002 June 12, 2009 - 300,000 - 300,000 June 12,2009 - June 11, 2015 02950
200965128 20096 R 1282201556518
264,000 300,000 - 564,000
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN 2002 November 11, 2009 - 500,000 - 500,000  November 11, 2009 - November 10, 2015 0.7800
(Director) 200911 F11E 200911 F1BZ2015% 11 F10R
FRERE
(%)
Ms. Kam Har YUE 2002 June 11, 2007 96,000 - - 96,000 June 11,2007 - June 10, 2013 08333
(Director) 007565118 00766 F1B 22013565108
REERT
(E%) 2002 September 25, 2007 168,000 - - 168,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 0.8700
200795258 007695258 22013595 4R
2002 June 12, 2009 - 2,900,000 - 2,900,000 June 12,2009 - June 11, 2015 0.2950
200965128 200965128 2201556 F 118
264,000 2,900,000 - 3,164,000

188 WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED fistf7 () A R4 W




SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
& o wd BHE &' R

Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
January 1, December 31, Exercise
2009 Grant  Exercised Lapsed 2009 Price
20096  during the during the  during the  }2009% g
Eligible Person Scheme Type Date of Grant 1A1R Year Year Year 128318  Exercisable period HKS
RERAL FHER  RAAH HATE  FRRE  FRTR O FRAN HAGE RS BT
Continuous contract
employees
REAHES 2002 June 11, 2007 240,000 - - (120,000 120,000 June 11,2007 - 08333
200746118 June 10, 2013
00756 A11EE
2013564108
2002 August 9, 2007 720,000 - - (96,000) 624,000  August 9, 2007 - 1.0650
200768A9A August 8, 2013
20015898 %
201358A8H
2002 September 25, 2007 4,284,000 - (28,0000 (1,392,000 2,864,000 September 25,2007 - 0.8700
2007694251 September 24, 2013
2007698250 %
2013597248
2002 June 12, 2009 - 9,900,000 (6,070,000)  (840,000) 2,990,000  June 12, 2009 - 0.2950
2009967128 June 11, 2015
00956 ANHE
201556 A118
2002 November 11, 2009 - 500,000 - - 500,000 November 11, 2009 - 0.7800
2009511 A11H November 10, 2015
2000511 ANEE
201556118108
5,244,000 10,400,000  (6,098,000)  (2,448,000) 7,098,000
11,088,000 23,100,000 (6,098,000 (3,552,000 24,538,000
Notes: MiaE

1. Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI has resigned as an executive director 1.

of the Company with effect from July 1, 2009.

2. Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE has resigned as an INED of the 2.

Company with effect from June 3, 2009.

AFEREECBHEARRRITES - B2009F

TATBRER -

FERELEBHEIARBBUFNITESE 8

200946 A3H AR -
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

f

e RO AR &

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Mty () AR

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REFEFMA LB ER L E)
(Stock Code: 720)

(A&7 R 55%: 720)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general meeting of
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED (“the Company”) will be
held at Function Room 5, 11/F, L'hotel Nina et Convention Centre,
8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Tuesday, June 1, 2010 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof,
for the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, passing,
with or without modification, the following resolutions:

1. Toreceive and consider the audited consolidated accounts
and the reports of directors and auditors of the Company

for the year ended December 31, 2009;

2. (A) Tore-elect the following persons as directors of the

Company:—
(i) Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG; and
(i) Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN; and

(B) To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the
remuneration of the Directors; and

3. To authorise the Board of Directors to appoint auditors
of the Company and to fix their remuneration; and
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BEEMNTZT(EB)BRAR(TARFDZE
FI02010F6 H1H (2 8 =) EF1065 E& &
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

& R

G N

4.  Asspecial business, to consider and, if though fit, passing,
with or without modification, the following resolutions
as ordinary resolutions:

(A)

“THAT a general and unconditional mandate be
granted to the Directors of the Company to exercise
all the power to allot, issue and otherwise deal
with the new shares in the Company not exceeding
20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
the passing of the relevant resolution.”

“THAT a general and unconditional mandate be
granted to the Directors of the Company to repurchase
securities of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited of up to 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
in issue as at the date of the passing of the relevant
resolution.”

“THAT subject to the passing of resolutions Number
4(A) and 4(B), the aggregate nominal amount of
shares to be allotted, issued and otherwise dealt
with by the Directors of the Company pursuant
to resolution Number 4(A) be increased by the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company which are to be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to the authority granted to the
Directors of the Company under resolution Number
4(B)."

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Tik Tung WONG
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, April 27, 2010

Registered office:
Canon’'s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

4. ERBHIFEE  ZEENBEBATRE
R(TWBRER) REBRRE

(A)

EEEE

(BB E TARAIESRE — R REEG
B TE—UESD R B
TRUNEMAREEARARRZFHR
D ERBHRBARENEBRE
RERBEBZERTRAZAEAME
4AEE20% © |

[BRBE T ARBEST —REEGFMF
B ERBBMARSMARLDA
BERARRZED  EABBEAN
RANEARAZREBBEAZE
BTN 2 EEARRE10% © )

[ BB F4(A)RAB)EIRFE R B
B EARRESFRIEFLA)ER
A TRE - BITRUEMTA
BREZERMDEEAB L MAKX
RAIRBEFAB)EARBZRER TARA
EEZRNBEZARBRAS Z
B E{EAREE -]

PN
Ap

MET(RE)BERAF

NAEIRE

EWRR

A 0 2010F4H27H

A EE -
Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street

Hamilton
Bermuda

HM12

Annual Report 2009 4

191




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
e RO AR &

Principal office in Hong Kong: EEFENEFRE
10th Floor, Block A BB

Wo Kee Hong Building R
585-609 Castle Peak Road FIL38585-6095%
Kwai Chung, New Territories MEITRE
Hong Kong AFE104E

Notes: B 5T -

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting
may appoint another person as his proxy to attend and to vote
in his stead. A shareholder who is the holder of two or more
shares may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same
occasion. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

Where there are joint registered holders of any Share, any one of
such persons may vote at the above meeting, either personally
or by proxy, in respect of such Share as if he were solely entitled
thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders are present
at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said
persons so present whose name stands first on the register of
members of the Company in respect of such Shares shall alone
be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and signed
in accordance with the instructions printed thereon together
with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under
which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof must be
delivered to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo Kee Building, 585-609 Castle Peak
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the above meeting
or any adjournment thereof.

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude
shareholders from attending and voting in person at the above
meeting or any adjourned meeting or upon the poll concerned
if they so wish. In such event, the instrument appointing the
proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

Pursuant to Rule 13.94(4) of the Listing Rules, the resolutions
set out in this notice will be decided by poll at the above

meeting.

A circular containing a detailed Notice of Annual General Meeting
will be despatched together with this Annual Report.

for identification purposes only
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4as~ WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Mty (M) A2

10th Floor, Block A, Wo Kee Hong Building

585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
AW R 75 LB S85 260958

AIFLATRBIAJE 104

Tel FE R : (852) 25144700  Fax {2 : (852) 2521 7198

Website #84k : http://www.wokeehong.com.hk
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